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26 June 2014  
 
Mr Bob Nanva 
National Secretary 
Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union 
Trades Hall, Suite 210, 4-10 Goulburn Street 

SYDNEY   NSW   2000 

 

Dear Mr Nanva 

Re: Lodgement of Financial Statements and Accounts - Australian Rail, Tram and Bus 

Industry Union - for year ended 31 December 2013 (FR2013/446) 

 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union 

(‘the reporting unit’) for the year ended 31 December 2013.  The documents were lodged with the 

Fair Work Commission on 18 June 2014. 

The financial report has now been filed.  

The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 

financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 

(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under 

s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 

Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  A primary 

review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 

Please note that the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2014 may be subject to an 

advanced compliance review. 

I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. You are 

not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  The Fair Work 

Commission will confirm these concerns have been addressed prior to filing next year’s report. 

Revenue recognition 

The Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements paragraph 

117 and AASB 118: Revenue paragraph 35(a) requires that the entity must disclose the 

measurement basis or bases used in recognising revenue.   

The accounting policy for revenue has not been disclosed. 

Disclosure of employee expenses/provisions to office holders and other employees 

The financial statements (Note 4A) have disclosed employee benefits expenses separately for 

officers and employees, and separately for wages, superannuation, leave entitlements and other 

(Retirement Benefit) expenses but did not separately disclose any expense for 

separation/redundancies for holders of office or employees.  The Reporting Guidelines require 

that all employee and officer expenses are reported separately (refer items 17(f) and 17(g))1.  

The Reporting Guidelines also require either the statement of financial position or the notes to 

disclose any liability for employee benefits in respect of office holders and other employees 

                                                

1
 This requirement is now at items 16(f)(iv) and 16(g)(iv) of the new Reporting Guidelines that will apply to the year 

ended 31 December 2014. 



(items 21(c) and 21 (d))2. Note 14 discloses provisions separately for holders of office and 

employees, and separately for annual leave, long service leave, and other (RDO, Retirement 

Benefits) provisions, but did not separately disclose any provision for separation/redundancies.   

Items 18 and 223 of the Reporting Guidelines state that if any activities identified in items 17 and 

21 respectively have not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect (or a nil 

balance) must be included in the notes to the GPFR.   

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on (02) 6723 7237 or via email at 

stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely 

 

  

Stephen Kellett 

Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch 

 

 

cc. Mr Ken Mangraviti, Auditor 

                                                

2
 This requirement is now at item 21(c)(iii) and 21(d)(Iv) of the new Reporting Guidelines that will apply to the year 

ended 31 December 2014 
3
 Now item 17 and 21 respectively of the new Reporting Guidelines 
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From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "Allan Barden"
Cc: "Ken Mangraviti"
Subject: Attention Mr Bob Nanva - Financial report y/e 31 Dec 2013 - filing
Date: Thursday, 26 June 2014 12:50:00 PM
Attachments: ARTBIU FR2013 446 (primary final).pdf

s253-Reporting-Guidelines-4th-edition.pdf
Model-financial-statements.pdf

Dear Allan,
 
Please see attached my letter in relation to the above.   I also attach, as reference, a copy of the
new Reporting Guidelines that will apply to the year ended 31 December 2014 and a copy of the
Model financial statements which illustrates how different kinds of reporting disclosure if and
where they apply to the organisation, may be set out.
 
Yours sincerely
 
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6723 7237
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
 

mailto:abarden@rtbu.org.au
mailto:ken@kjmservices.com.au
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Dear Mr Nanva 


Re: Lodgement of Financial Statements and Accounts - Australian Rail, Tram and Bus 


Industry Union - for year ended 31 December 2013 (FR2013/446) 


 


I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union 


(‘the reporting unit’) for the year ended 31 December 2013.  The documents were lodged with the 


Fair Work Commission on 18 June 2014. 


The financial report has now been filed.  


The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 


financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 


(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under 


s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 


Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  A primary 


review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 


Please note that the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2014 may be subject to an 


advanced compliance review. 


I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report. You are 


not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  The Fair Work 


Commission will confirm these concerns have been addressed prior to filing next year’s report. 


Revenue recognition 


The Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements paragraph 


117 and AASB 118: Revenue paragraph 35(a) requires that the entity must disclose the 


measurement basis or bases used in recognising revenue.   


The accounting policy for revenue has not been disclosed. 


Disclosure of employee expenses/provisions to office holders and other employees 


The financial statements (Note 4A) have disclosed employee benefits expenses separately for 


officers and employees, and separately for wages, superannuation, leave entitlements and other 


(Retirement Benefit) expenses but did not separately disclose any expense for 


separation/redundancies for holders of office or employees.  The Reporting Guidelines require 


that all employee and officer expenses are reported separately (refer items 17(f) and 17(g))1.  


The Reporting Guidelines also require either the statement of financial position or the notes to 


disclose any liability for employee benefits in respect of office holders and other employees 


                                                


1
 This requirement is now at items 16(f)(iv) and 16(g)(iv) of the new Reporting Guidelines that will apply to the year 


ended 31 December 2014. 







(items 21(c) and 21 (d))2. Note 14 discloses provisions separately for holders of office and 


employees, and separately for annual leave, long service leave, and other (RDO, Retirement 


Benefits) provisions, but did not separately disclose any provision for separation/redundancies.   


Items 18 and 223 of the Reporting Guidelines state that if any activities identified in items 17 and 


21 respectively have not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect (or a nil 


balance) must be included in the notes to the GPFR.   


If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on (02) 6723 7237 or via email at 


stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au. 


Yours sincerely 


 


  


Stephen Kellett 


Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch 


 


 


cc. Mr Ken Mangraviti, Auditor 


                                                


2
 This requirement is now at item 21(c)(iii) and 21(d)(Iv) of the new Reporting Guidelines that will apply to the year 


ended 31 December 2014 
3
 Now item 17 and 21 respectively of the new Reporting Guidelines 
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Reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 
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Publication history:  Relevant legislation 


or materials 


Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 2009 


Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) 


Regulations 2009 


First edition: 20 June 2003 


Second edition: 12 October 2004 


Third edition: 26 June 2013 


Fourth edition: 13 June 2014   


Application  


1. These reporting guidelines are made under section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).  


2. These reporting guidelines apply to all general purpose financial reports (GPFR), 


including a concise financial report, as defined in section 242 of the RO Act except where 


the General Manager has issued a certificate under subsection 270(1) to the reporting 


unit for that financial year. Separate reporting guidelines made under section 255 of the 


RO Act for purposes of section 270 apply to a GPFR of a reporting unit in relation to the 


financial year for which a certificate has been issued under subsection 270(1).  


3. In the event of a conflict between a requirement of these reporting guidelines and a 


requirement of an Australian Accounting Standard, the requirement of the Standard 


prevails unless there has been a determination under section 241 of the RO Act that the 


Standard or the relevant part of the Standard does not apply in relation to an organisation 


or a class of organisations.  


Operative date  


4. These reporting guidelines apply to each financial year of a reporting unit that ends on or 


after 30 June 2014.  


Purpose of reporting guidelines  


5. These reporting guidelines apply for the purposes of section 253 of the RO Act.  


6. Under subsection 253(1) of the RO Act a reporting unit is required to have a GPFR 


prepared. The GPFR must be prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting 


Standards. These reporting guidelines prescribe disclosure requirements in addition to 


those prescribed by Australian Accounting Standards having in mind the nature of 


organisations registered under the RO Act.  


7. The disclosure requirements prescribed by these reporting guidelines are directed 


towards providing members of a reporting unit with information to enable them to gauge 


the performance of the committee of management and other holders of office in relation 


to the financial management of the reporting unit. In addition, the reporting guidelines 


seek to improve the quality of information available to users of the GPFR about the 


reporting unit’s economic support of, or economic dependency on, other reporting units of 


the organisation and other entities.  
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General requirements for presentation and disclosures in GPFR  


8. It is a requirement that all reporting units apply the Tier 1 reporting requirements as per 


the Australian Accounting Standard AASB1053 Application for Tiers of Australian 


Accounting Standards. 


9. The reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements the notice 


required by subsection 272(5) of the RO Act drawing attention to subsections (1), (2) and 


(3) of section 272 and setting out those subsections. 


10. Where a reporting unit’s ability to continue as a going concern is reliant on the agreed 


financial support of another reporting unit(s) this must be disclosed in the notes to the 


financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


a) the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the agreed financial support may be 


derived; and 


b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


11. Where a reporting unit has agreed to provide financial support to ensure another 


reporting unit(s) has the ability to continue as a going concern this must be disclosed in 


the notes to the financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


a) the name of the reporting unit(s) to which the agreed financial support is directed; 


b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


12. Where a reporting unit acquires an asset or a liability during the financial year as a result 


of:  


a) an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3, of the RO Act in which the 


organisation (of which the reporting unit form part) was the amalgamated 


organisation; or  


b) a restructure of the branches of the organisation; or  


c) a determination by the General Manager under subsection 245(1) of the RO Act of 


an alternative reporting structure for the organisation; or  


d) a revocation by the General Manager under subsection 249(1) of the RO Act of a 


certificate issued to an organisation under subsection 245(1),  


the reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements in respect of each 


such asset or class of assets or each such liability or class of liabilities:  


e) date acquired;  


f) description; and  


g) name of the entity (including a reporting unit of the organisation or that of another 


organisation) from which it was acquired.  


13. If any of the activities identified in paragraphs 10, 11 and 12 have not occurred in the 


reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 
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Statement of comprehensive income  


Revenue 


14. Balances for the following items of revenue must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 


notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


a) entrance fees or periodic subscriptions (in these guidelines referred to as 


membership subscriptions) in respect of membership of the organisation;  


b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, a 


reporting unit may receive from another reporting unit of the organisation a 


capitation fee: 


i. the amount from each reporting unit; and  


ii. the name of each such reporting unit;  


c) where compulsory levies are raised from the members or as appeals for voluntary 


contributions (including whip arounds) for the furtherance of a particular purpose: 


i. the amount; and  


ii. a brief description of the purpose of each such levy or appeal;  


d) donations or grants (other than voluntary contributions referred to in 


subparagraph c)); and  


e) where the reporting unit is in receipt of any other financial support from another 


reporting unit of the organisation:  


i. the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the financial support is derived; and  


ii. the amount of financial support derived from the other reporting unit(s).  


15. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 14 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 


Expense 


16. Balances for the following items of expense must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 


notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


a) expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of 


membership subscriptions;  


b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, the 


reporting unit must pay to another reporting unit of the organisation a capitation 


fee: 


i. the amount paid to each entity; and  


ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid;  
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c) where fees and periodic subscriptions are paid in respect of its affiliation to any 


political party, any federation, congress, council or group of organisations, or any 


international body having an interest in industrial matters: 


i. the amount paid to each entity; and  


ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid;  


d) where compulsory levies have been imposed on the reporting unit, for each such 


levy: 


i. the amount;  


ii. a brief description of purpose; and 


iii. the name of the entity imposing the levy (including another reporting unit of the 


organisation);  


e) where grants or donations have been paid: 


i. the total amount paid in grants that were $1,000 or less;  


ii. the total amount paid in grants that exceeded $1,000;  


iii. the total amount paid in donations that were less than $1,000; and   


iv. the total amount paid in donations that exceeded $1,000;  


Please note that grants and donations that exceed $1,000 must be separately disclosed in a 


statement and lodged with FWC as per section 237 of the RO Act.
1
 


f) employee expenses related to holders of office of the reporting unit by each of the 


following categories: 


i. wages and salaries; 


ii. superannuation; 


iii. leave and other entitlements; 


iv. separation and redundancies; and 


v. other employee expenses (specify if material);  


g) employee expenses related to employees (other than holders of offices) of the 


reporting unit by each of the following categories:  


i. wages and salaries; 


ii. superannuation; 


iii. leave and other entitlements; 


iv. separation and redundancies; and 


                                                      


1
 Civil penalty provisions apply. 
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v. other employee expenses (specify if material); 


h) fees and/or allowances (other than any amount included in an amount referred to 


in subparagraphs (f) or (g) of this paragraph) paid to persons in respect of their 


attendances as representatives of the reporting unit at conferences or other 


meetings;  


i) expenses (other than expenses included in an amount referred to elsewhere in this 


paragraph) incurred in connection with holding meetings of members of the 


reporting unit and any conferences or meetings of councils, committees, panels or 


other bodies for the holding of which the reporting unit was wholly or partly 


responsible;  


j) legal costs and other expenses related to: 


i. litigation; and  


ii. other legal matters;  


k) penalties imposed on the organisation under the RO Act with respect to conduct of 


the reporting unit.   


17. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 16 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Statement of financial position  


18. Where an item is disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position as:  


a) a receivable or other right to receive cash; or  


b) a payable or other financial liability; and  


c) the item or a part of the item has been derived as a result of one or more 


transactions and/or other past events with another reporting unit of the 


organisation,  


the following additional disclosures must be made in the notes to the financial statements 


about the item or part of the item:  


d) the name of the other reporting unit; and  


e) the amount attributable to the other reporting unit.  


19. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 18 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 


Liabilities 


20. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 


to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


financial position in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards:  


a) payables to employers as consideration for the employers making payroll 


deductions of membership subscriptions;  


b) payables in respect of legal costs and other expenses related to: 
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i. litigation; and  


ii. other legal matters;  


c) employee provisions in respect of holders of offices in the reporting unit by: 


i. annual leave; 


ii. long service leave; 


iii. separation and redundancies;  


iv. other employee provisions; and 


d) employee provisions in respect of employees (other than holders of offices) of the 


reporting unit by: 


i. annual leave; 


ii. long service leave; 


iii. separation and redundancies; and 


iv. other employee provisions. 


21. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 20 have not occurred for the reporting 


period, a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 


Statement of changes in equity  


22. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 


to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


financial position or statement of changes in equity in accordance with Australian 


Accounting Standards:  


a) name and balance of each fund or account operated in respect of compulsory 


levies raised by the reporting unit or voluntary contributions collected from 


members of the reporting unit;  


b) where monies, or the balance of monies referred to in subparagraph (a) have been 


invested in any assets: 


i. the name of the fund or account; and  


ii. the value of those assets;  


c) name and balance of each fund or account operated (other than the general fund 


or a fund referred to in (a)), the operation of which is required by the rules of the 


organisation including the rules of a branch of the organisation;  


d) where there has been transfer(s) and/or withdrawal(s) to a fund, account or 


controlled entity, when any of these are kept for a specific purpose(s) by the 


reporting unit:  


i. the amount transferred to, or withdrawn;  


ii. the name of the fund, account or controlled entity; and 
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iii. the specific purpose of the fund, account or controlled entity; and  


e) the balance of the general fund.  


23. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 22 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 


Statement of cash flows  


24. Where another reporting unit and/or controlled entity of the organisation is the source of a 


cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow, such cash flow should be separately 


disclosed either in the cash flow statement or in the notes to the financial statements and 


show the name of the other reporting unit and/or controlled entity concerned.  


25. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 24 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. 


Recovery of wages activity financial report  


26. Where the reporting unit has undertaken recovery of wages activity and has derived 


revenues for the financial year in respect of such activity, the financial information 


associated with this activity must be disclosed as an additional financial report as 


required by section 253(2)(c) of the RO Act.  


27. The financial report required under paragraph 26 must be prepared and presented in a 


manner consistent with Australian Accounting Standards.  


28. Comparatives for the preceding financial year must be disclosed in the financial report 


required under paragraph 26.  


29. The financial report required under paragraph 26 must be prepared under the accrual 


basis of accounting. 


30. Balances for the following items must be disclosed in the financial report required under 


paragraph 26:  


Revenue 


a) amounts in aggregate recovered from employers in respect of recovery of wages 


activity including the number of workers to which the monies recovered relates; 


and  


b) interest received on recovered monies 


Expenditure 


c) deductions of amounts payable in aggregate in respect of membership of the 


organisation where at the time of deduction the amounts had become payable:  


i. 12 months or less; or  


ii. greater than 12 months; and  


d) deductions of donations or other contributions made to a fund or account: 


i. of the reporting unit, showing the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each 


such fund or account; and  
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ii. of another reporting unit of the organisation, showing the name of the other reporting 


unit and the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; 


and  


iii. of another entity, showing the name of the other entity and the name and amount in 


aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; and  


e) deductions in aggregate of fees charged or reimbursements in aggregate of 


expenses incurred by the reporting unit in respect of recovery of wages activity; 


and  


f) amounts in aggregate distributed to workers as recovered monies 


Assets  


g) cash assets, including the name and balance of each fund or account, attributable 


to recovered monies as at the beginning of the financial year;   


h) cash assets, including the name and balance of each fund or account, attributable 


to recovered monies as at the end of the financial year; 


i) aggregate payables to workers attributable to recovered monies but not yet 


distributed including the number of workers to which the payables relate; and 


j) where monies, or the balance of monies have been invested in any assets: 


i. the name of the fund or accounts or assets; and 


ii. the value of those assets  


Additional reporting requirements 


31. Where a reporting unit’s financial affairs are administered by another entity (the other 


entity), the reporting unit must disclose in a separate note in the GPFR a detailed 


breakdown of all services provided and/or expenses incurred. This will also include: 


a) the name of the other entity; 


b) the terms and conditions of the arrangement;  


c) a narrative description as to the nature of the expenses and/or consultancy 


services provided. 


Where applicable, such disclosure shall be in accordance with the disclosure 


requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards, the RO Act and these reporting 


guidelines. 


32. Any payments made during the reporting period to a former related party of the reporting 


unit, where the liability was incurred during the period in which a related party relationship 


existed, must be disclosed under the related party transaction note in the GPFR as 


though the related party relationship existed at the date of payment.
2
 


                                                      


2
 For example, payments of employment entitlements to former officers of the reporting unit 


would fall within this category. 
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Operating report 


33. The operating report must: 


a) identify the officer(s) who prepared the report; 


b) be signed by the officer(s) who prepared the report; and 


c) be dated by each officer who has signed the report as at the date on which the 


officer signs the report. 


Committee of management statement  


34. For the purposes of paragraph 253(2)(c) of the RO Act, the reporting unit must prepare a 


committee of management statement containing declarations by the committee of 


management in relation to the GPFR.  


35. The committee of management statement must include declarations by the committee of 


management as to whether in their opinion:  


a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 


Standards;  


b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 


General Manager;  


c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 


performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial 


year to which they relate;  


d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay 


its debts as and when they become due and payable; 


e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:  


i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of 


the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 


rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 


accordance with the RO Act; and  


iv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records 


of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a manner consistent 


with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and  


v. where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit 


or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that information 


has been provided to the member or General Manager; and  


vi. where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work 


Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.  
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f) where the reporting unit has not derived revenue from undertaking recovery of 


wages activity, include the statement ‘no revenue has been derived from 


undertaking recovery of wages activity during the reporting period’ or 


g)  where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages 


activity:  


i. the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 


prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 


General Manager; and  


ii. the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope of the 


audit required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity 


by the reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 


respect of such activity; and  


iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 


donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 


employers on behalf of workers other than as reported in the financial report on 


recovery of wages activity and the notes to the financial statements; and  


iv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 


disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 


reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any likely 


request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery of 


wages activity; and  


v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 


donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 


employers on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 


the workers.  


36. The committee of management statement must:  


a) be made in accordance with such resolution as is passed by the committee of 


management of the reporting unit in relation to the matters requiring declaration;  


b) specify the date of passage of the resolution;  


c) be signed by a designated officer within the meaning of section 243 of the RO Act; 


and  


d) be dated as at the date the designated officer signs the statement.  


Auditor’s statement  


37. The auditor’s statement required under section 257(5) of the RO Act must include a 


declaration as to whether in the auditor’s opinion the GPFR is presented fairly in 


accordance with any of the following that apply in relation to the reporting unit:  


a) the Australian Accounting Standards;  


b) in relation to recovery of wages activity;  


i. that the scope of the audit encompassed recovery of wages activity;  
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ii. that the financial statements and notes and recovery of wages activity financial 


report properly and fairly report all information required by the reporting guidelines of 


the General Manager, including:  


(1) any fees charged to, or reimbursements of expenses claimed from, members 


and others for recovery of wages activity; and  


(2) any donations or other contributions deducted from recovered money; and 


c) any other requirements imposed by these Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of 


Chapter 8 of the RO Act.  


38. The auditor’s statement: 


a) must include a declaration that either: 


i. the auditor is an approved auditor; or 


ii. the auditor is a member of a firm where at least one member is an approved auditor; 


and 


b) must specify that the auditor: 


i. is a person who is a member of CPA Australia, The Institute of Chartered 


Accountants in Australia or the Institute of Public Accountants (formerly the National 


Institute of Accountants); and 


ii. holds a current Public Practice Certificate. 


39. The auditor’s statement must include a declaration, that as part of the audit of the 


financial statements, they have concluded that management’s use of the going concern 


basis of accounting in the preparation of the reporting unit’s financial statements is 


appropriate. 
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Glossary of terms  


40. The following terms are used in these reporting guidelines—the meaning of any term 


defined in the Australian Accounting Standards is not modified by the following glossary:  


amalgamated organisation has the meaning provided in section 35 of the RO Act.  


approved auditor has the meaning set out in regulation 4 of the RO Regulations. 


assets are resources controlled by a reporting unit as a result of past events and from 


which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.  


Australian Accounting Standards means the accounting standards issued by the 


Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) or issued by CPA Australia and by The 


Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and adopted by the AASB (section 6 of the 


RO Act).  


capitation fees mean amounts which, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of 


the organisation, a reporting unit may receive from or pay to another reporting unit of the 


organisation, calculated in accordance with rules of the organisation or branch for the 


purpose of ongoing general administrative expenses. 


cash means cash on hand and demand deposits.  


cash equivalent means short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 


to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 


value.  


cash flows means inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.  


comparatives mean the corresponding amounts and other disclosures for the preceding 


financial year presented for comparative purposes as part of the current year's financial 


report.  


control means the capacity of an entity to dominate decision-making, directly or 


indirectly, in relation to the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to 


enable that other entity to operate with it in achieving the objectives of the controlling 


entity. 


control (of an entity) means the power to govern the financial and operating policies of 


an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 


designated officer is an officer of the reporting unit within the meaning of section 243 of 


the RO Act.  


employee benefits mean all forms of consideration given by the reporting unit in 


exchange for services rendered by holders of office or employees or for the termination of 


employment.  


entity means any legal, administrative, or fiduciary arrangement, organisational structure 


(including a reporting unit of an organisation) or other party (including a person) having 


the capacity to deploy scarce resources in order to achieve objectives.  


equity means the residual interest in the assets of the reporting unit after deducting all its 


liabilities.  
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financial records to the extent that they relate to finances or financial administration 


includes: 


a) a register; 


b) any other record of information; 


c) financial reports or financial records, however compiled, recorded or stored; 


d) a document (section 6 of the RO Act).  


financial statements comprise a statement of financial position, a statement of 


comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of cash flows and 


any other statement required by the Australian Accounting Standards 


(paragraph 253(2)(a) of RO Act).  


financial support means financial resources provided to ensure that the provision of the 


principal activities are possible. 


financial year in relation to an organisation means the period of 12 months commencing 


on 1 July in any year, or another period of 12 months as is provided in the rules of the 


organisation (section 6 of RO Act), or a different period in the special circumstances set 


out in section 240 of the RO Act.  


general administrative expenses includes expenses in respect of the office of the 


reporting unit, and other expenses that arise at the reporting unit level and relate to the 


reporting unit as a whole.  


general fund means the equity of the reporting unit other than in relation to any fund 


operated by the reporting unit for a specific purpose.  


general purpose financial report has the meaning set out in subsection 253(2) of the 


RO Act.  


grant or donation is taken to have the same meaning as used in section 149 or 


section 237 of the RO Act, though it is not limited by amount.  


liabilities are a present obligation of the reporting unit arising from past events, the 


settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the reporting unit of resources 


embodying economic benefits.  


membership subscriptions mean entrance fees or periodic subscriptions in respect of 


membership of the organisation.  


notes to the financial statements comprise notes required by Australian Accounting 


Standards and information required by the reporting guidelines (paragraph 253(2)(b) of 


the RO Act).  


organisation means an organisation registered under the RO Act.  


other entity includes another reporting unit, a state association, a transitionally 


recognised association, external entity or other controlled entity of the reporting unit. 


payables are amounts owed by the reporting unit to other entities for goods or services 


delivered.  
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prescribed designated officer for the purposes of paragraph 268(c) of the RO Act 


means: 


a) the secretary; or 


b) an officer of the organisation (or reporting unit) other than the secretary who is 


authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the organisation to sign the 


certificate.  


RO Act means the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  


RO Regulations means the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 


receivables are amounts owed to the reporting unit by other entities (including members 


of the reporting unit) for goods or services delivered (including membership 


subscriptions).  


recovery of wages activity means work by the organisation to recover from employer’s 


money due and payable to workers under awards, industrial instruments as prescribed in 


the Fair Work Act 2009 and contracts of employment.  


related party has the meaning set out as per the Australian Accounting Standards. 


reporting unit has the meaning set out in section 242 of the RO Act.  


revenue are inflows or other enhancements, or savings in outflows of future economic 


benefits in the form of increase in assets or reductions in liabilities of the reporting unit 


that result in an increase in equity during the financial year.  


rules of an organisation are the rules that an organisation must have under Chapter 5, 


Part 2 of the RO Act.  


whip around means the collection of monies, whether on one or more occasions and 


whether voluntary or compulsory, by an officer or member of the reporting unit for the 


purpose of providing financial support to member(s) of the reporting unit and/or assisting 


the reporting unit to carry out the registered organisation’s objects as set out in its rules.  


workers means, in the context of recovery of wages activity, an employee who may or 


may not be a member of the organisation engaging in the recovery of wages activity.  


 


 
Bernadette O’Neill 


General Manager 
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Introduction 


 


This document contains a model consolidated financial report of a fictitious reporting unit as 
defined under section 242 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act), with 
a reporting date of 30 June 2013. 


 


The enclosed financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act including the section 253 Reporting 
Guidelines issued 26 June 2013. The report is intended to illustrate the disclosure requirements 
of the Accounting Standards and the RO Act as required for the preparation of a general 
purpose financial report under Tier 1—Australian Accounting Standards. 


 


This financial report is illustrative only and does not attempt to show all possible accounting and 
disclosure requirements. It is essential to refer to the relevant authoritative source and, where 
necessary, seek appropriate professional advice. 


 


Although the illustrative financial report attempts to show the most common disclosure 
requirements for reporting units, it should not be regarded as a comprehensive checklist. A 
reporting unit will need to ensure that only the disclosures that are applicable to their individual 
circumstances are included in the audited financial report distributed to members and lodged 
with Fair Work Commission. 


 


Australian Accounting Standards 


 


When complying with Australian Accounting Standards, preparers also need to comply with all 
applicable amending standards and interpretations. 


 


Australian Accounting Standards applicable as at 30 June 2013 


 


This financial report illustrates Australian Accounting Standards which apply to annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. 


 


It is important to note that the illustrative financial report in this document will require continual 
updating as new and amended Standards and Interpretations are issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board. Therefore, if you are using this publication to assist in the 
preparation of your financial report, it must be emphasised that this does not include changes 
arising from new and amending Standards and Interpretations effective for periods commencing 
after 1 January 2013. 


 


Therefore, users of this publication are cautioned to ensure that they consider any changes in 
the requirements of Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued after 1 January 2013. 


 


In addition, the disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are 
not applicable to the fictitious reporting unit and have therefore not been dealt with in the model 
financial report: 


 


AASB 1 First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards 


AASB 4 Insurance Contracts 


AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 


AASB 111 Construction Contracts 


AASB 129 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 


AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting 


AASB 141 Agriculture 
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AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts 


AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts 


AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports 


AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting 


AASB 1050 Administered Items 


AASB 1051 Land Under Roads 


AASB 1052 Disaggregated Disclosures 


AAS 25 Financial Reporting by Superannuation Plans 


Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements 


Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programs 


Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate 


Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 


Interpretation 107 Introduction of the Euro 


Interpretation 110 Government Assistance — No Specific Relation to Operating Activities 


Interpretation 129 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures 


Interpretation 131 Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services 


Interpretation 132 Intangible Assets — Web Site Costs 


Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities 


Interpretation 1042 Subscriber Acquisition Costs in the Telecommunications Industry 


Interpretation 1047 Professional Indemnity Claims Liabilities in Medical Defence Organisations 


Interpretation 1055 Accounting for Road Earthworks 


 


Allowed alternative treatments 


 


In some cases, an Australian Accounting Standard permits more than one accounting treatment 
for a transaction or event. Preparers of financial statements should select the treatment that is 
most relevant to their business and the relevant circumstances as their accounting policy. 


 


AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, requires an entity 
to select and apply its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, events and/or 
conditions, unless an Australian Accounting Standard specifically requires or permits 
categorisation of items for which different policies may be appropriate. Where an Australian 
Accounting Standard requires or permits such categorisation, an appropriate accounting policy 
is selected and applied consistently to each category. Therefore, once a choice of one of the 
alternative treatments has been made, it becomes an accounting policy and must be applied 
consistently. Changes in accounting policy should only be made if required by a standard or 
interpretation, or if the change results in the financial statements providing more reliable and 
relevant information. 


 


Abbreviations 


 


The following abbreviations are used in the model financial report: 


 


AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board 


FBT Fringe Benefit Tax 


GPFR General Purpose Financial Report 


GST Goods and Services Tax 


RO Act Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009  


RO Regulations Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 


SAMPLE CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER1 


Certificate for the period ended [insert date] 2013 


 


I [name] being the [title of office] of the [name of the reporting unit] certify:  


 that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report [and the concise 
report]2 for the [name of the reporting unit] for the period ended [insert date] referred to 
in s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and  
 


 that the [full report OR concise report]3 was provided to members of the reporting unit 
on [insert date]; and 
 


 that the full report was presented to [a general meeting of members OR a meeting of 
the committee of management]4 of the reporting unit on [insert date] in accordance with 
s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 


 


Signature of prescribed designated officer: 


.............................................................................................  


 


Name of prescribed designated officer: 


............................................................................................. 


 


Title of prescribed designated officer: ..................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  


                                                


1
  Regulation 162 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 defines a ‘prescribed designated officer’ of a 


reporting unit for the purposes of s.268(c) as: 
 (a)  the secretary; or 
 (b)  an officer of the organisation other than the secretary who is authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the 


organisation to sign the certificate mentioned in that paragraph. 
2
  Only applicable where a concise report is provided to members. 


3
  Adjust certificate as appropriate to reflect the facts. 


4
  Adjust certificate as appropriate to reflect the facts. 
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 [Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


SAMPLE OPERATING REPORT  


for the period ended [xxxx] 2013 


 


The committee presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended [xxxx] 


2013. 


Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant 


changes in the nature of those activities during the year 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(a)] 


Significant changes in financial affairs 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(b)] 


 Right of members to resign 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(c)] 


Officers & employees who are superannuation fund trustee(s) (include position 


details) or director of a company that is a superannuation fund trustee 


[Insert relevant information—refer s.254(2)(d)] 


Number of members 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(a) and s.254(2)(f)] 


Number of employees 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(b) and s.254(2)(f)] 


Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the 


financial year 


[Insert relevant information—refer regulation 159(c] 


Officers & employees who are directors of a company or a member of a board  


[Insert relevant information—refer reporting guideline 37] 


 


 


Signature of designated officer: ...............................................................................................  


 


Name and title of designated officer: ....................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


SAMPLE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT  


for the period ended [xxxx] 2013 


 


On the / / 2013 the [insert relevant committee name] of the [insert relevant reporting unit] 


passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report (GPRF) for the 


year ended [xxxx] 2013:  


The [insert relevant committee name] declares that in its opinion:  


(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;  


(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager;  


(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial 
year to which they relate;  


(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable; and  


(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year:  


(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the 
rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and  


(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance 
with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; 
and  


(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 
accordance with the RO Act; and  


(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial 
records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a 
consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; 
and  


(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the 
reporting unit or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO 
Act has been provided to the member or General Manager; and  


(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair 
Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been 
compliance.  


(f) in relation to recovery of wages activity:  


(i) the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and 
accurately prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting 
guidelines of the General Manager; and  


(ii) the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope 
of the audit required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of 
wages activity by the reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for 
the financial year in respect of such activity; and  


(iii) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages 
activity or donations or other contributions were deducted from monies 
recovered from employers on behalf of workers other than reported in the 
financial report on recovery of wages activity and the notes to the financial 
statements; and  
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(iv) that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 
disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 
reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activity, and any 
likely request for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in 
recovery of wages activity; and  


(v) no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages 
activity or donations or other contributions were deducted from monies 
recovered from employers on behalf of workers until distributions of 
recovered money were made to the workers. 


 


This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.  


  


 


Signature of designated officer: ...............................................................................................  


 


Name and title of designated officer: ....................................................................................... 


 


Dated: .......................................................................................................................................  
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 [Insert name of Reporting Unit]  


STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  


for the period ended 30 June 2013 


 


  Consolidated Parent 


  2013 2012 2013 2012 


 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 Revenue      


 Membership subscription*  - - - - 


 Capitation fees 3A - - - - 


 Levies 3B - - - - 


 Interest 3C - - - - 


 Rental revenue 3D - - - - 


 Other revenue  - - - - 


 Total revenue  - - - - 


 Other Income      


 Grants and/or donations 3E - - - - 


 Share of net profit from associate 6D - - - - 


 Net gains from sale of assets 3F - - - - 


 Total other income   - - - - 


 Total income  - - - - 


       


 Expenses      


 Employee expenses 4A - - - - 


 Capitation fees 4B - - - - 


 Affiliation fees 4C - - - - 


 Administration expenses 4D - - - - 


 Grants or donations 4E - - - - 


 Depreciation and amortisation 4F - - - - 


 Finance costs 4G - - - - 


 Legal costs 4H - - - - 


 Audit fees 14 - - - - 


 Share of net loss from associate 6D - - - - 


 Write-down and impairment of assets 4I - - - - 


 Net losses from sale of assets 4J - - - - 


 Other expenses 4K - - - - 


 Total expenses  - - - - 


       


 Profit (loss) for the year  - - - - 


       


 Other comprehensive income      


 
Items that will not be subsequently 


reclassified to profit or loss 
 - - - - 


 
Gain on revaluation of land & 


buildings 
 - - - - 


       


 
Total comprehensive income for the 


year 
 - - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 


 


 


* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 


STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  


as at 30 June 2013 


  Consolidated Parent 


  2013 2012 2013 2012 


 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 ASSETS      


 Current Assets      


 Cash and cash equivalents 5A - - - - 


 Trade and other receivables 5B - - - - 


 Other current assets 5C - - - - 


 Total current assets  - - - - 


       


 Non-Current Assets      


 Land and buildings  6A - - - - 


 Plant and equipment 6B - - - - 


 Intangibles 6C - - - - 


 Investments in associates 6D - - - - 


 Other investments 6E - - - - 


 Other non-current assets 6F - - - - 


 Total non-financial assets  - - - - 


       


 Total assets  - - - - 


       


 LIABILITIES      


 Current Liabilities      


 Trade payables 7A - - - - 


 Other payables 7B - - - - 


 Employee provisions 8A - - - - 


 Total current liabilities  - - - - 


       


 Non-Current Liabilities      


 Employee provisions 8A - - - - 


 Other non-current liabilities 9A - - - - 


 Total non-current liabilities  - - - - 


       


 Total liabilities  - - - - 


       


 Net assets  - - - - 


       


 EQUITY      


 General funds 10A - - - - 


 Retained earnings (accumulated 


deficit) 
 - - 


- - 


 Total equity  - - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 


STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  


for the period ended 30 June 2013 


 


Consolidated 
 General 


funds 


Retained 


earnings 


Total equity 


 Notes $ $ $ 


Balance as at 1 July 2011  - - - 


Adjustment for errors  - - - 


Adjustment for changes in accounting 


policies 
 - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 


Other comprehensive income for the 


year 
 - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 


Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 


Closing balance as at 30 June 2012  - - - 


     


Adjustment for errors  - - - 


Adjustment for changes in accounting 


policies 
 - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 


Other comprehensive income for the 


year 
 - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 


Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 


Closing balance as at 30 June 2013  - - - 


 


Parent 
 General fund Retained 


earnings 


Total equity 


 Notes $ $ $ 


Balance as at 1 July 2011  - - - 


Adjustment for errors  - - - 


Adjustment for changes in accounting 


policies 
 - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 


Other comprehensive income for the 


year 
 - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 


Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 


Closing balance as at 30 June 2012  - - - 


     


Adjustment for errors  - - - 


Adjustment for changes in accounting 


policies 
 - - - 


Profit for the year  - - - 


Other comprehensive income for the 


year 
 - - - 


Transfer to/from [insert fund name] 10A - - - 


Transfer from retained earnings  - - - 


Closing balance as at 30 June 2013  - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 


CASH FLOW STATEMENT  


for the period ended 30 June 2013 


 


  Consolidated Parent 


  2013 2012 2013 2012 


 Notes $ $ $ $ 


 OPERATING ACTIVITIES      


 Cash received      


 Receipts from other reporting 


units/controlled entity(s) 
11B - - - - 


 Interest  - - - - 


 Other   - - - - 


 Cash used      


 Employees  - - - - 


 Suppliers   - - - - 


 Payment to other reporting 


units/controlled entity(s) 
11B - - - - 


 Net cash from (used by) operating 


activities 
11A - - - - 


       


 INVESTING ACTIVITIES      


 Cash received      


 Proceeds from sale of plant and 


equipment 
 - - - - 


 Proceeds from sale of land and 


buildings 
 - - - - 


 Other  - - - - 


 Cash used      


 Purchase of plant and equipment  - - - - 


 Purchase of land and buildings  - - - - 


 Other  - - - - 


 Net cash from (used by) investing 


activities 
 - - - - 


       


 FINANCING ACTIVITIES      


 Cash received      


 Contributed equity  - - - - 


 Other  - - - - 


 Cash used      


 Repayment of borrowings  - - - - 


 Other  - - - - 


 Net cash from (used by) financing 


activities 
 - - - - 


 Net increase (decrease) in cash held  - - - - 


 Cash & cash equivalents at the 


beginning of the reporting period 
 - - - - 


 Cash & cash equivalents at the end 


of the reporting period 
5A - - - - 


The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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[Insert name of Reporting Unit] 


RECOVERY OF WAGES ACTIVITY* 


for the period ended 30 June 2013 
 


 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Cash assets in respect of recovered 


money at beginning of year 
- - - - 


Receipts     


Amounts recovered from employers in respect 


of wages etc. 
- - - - 


Interest received on recovered money - - - - 


Total receipts - - - - 


Payments     


Deductions of amounts due in respect of 


membership for: 
    


12 months or less - - - - 


Greater than 12 months - - - - 


Deductions of donations or other contributions 


to accounts or funds of: 
    


The reporting unit:     


name of account  - - - - 


name of fund - - - - 


Name of other reporting unit of the 


organisation: 
    


name of account - - - - 


name of fund - - - - 


Name of other entity:     


name of account - - - - 


name of fund - - - - 


Deductions of fees or reimbursement of 


expenses 
- - - - 


Payments to workers in respect of recovered 


money 
- - - - 


Total payments - - - - 


     


Cash asset’s in respect of recovered 


money at end of year 
- - - - 


 
Number of workers to which the monies 
recovered relates 


- - - - 


 
Aggregate payables to workers attributable to recovered monies but not yet distributed 


Payable balance - - - - 


Number of workers the payable relates to - - - - 


 
Fund or account operated for recovery of wages 


[Insert fund or account name.  If invested in 


assets include value of each asset] 
- - - - 


 
 
 







Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  14/54 


* As required by the Reporting Guidelines.  Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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Index to the Notes of the Financial Statements 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 


1.1 Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements 


 


 The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been 


prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued 


by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period 


and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009. For the purpose of preparing the 


general purpose financial statements, the [reporting unit] is a not-for-profit/[or for profit] 


entity. 


 


The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance 


with the historical cost, except for certain assets and liabilities at measured at fair value, 


as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the 


fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 


allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial 


position. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars. 


 


1.2 Comparative amounts 


 


When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to 


conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.  


 


1.3 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates 


 


The following accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a 


significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 


liabilities within the next reporting period. [provide list] 


 


1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards 


 
Adoption of New Australian Accounting Standard Requirements 


 


 No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the 


standard. 


  


The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year 


except as follows: [list]  


 
Future Australian Accounting Standards Requirements 
 


New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the 


sign-off date and are applicable to the future reporting period that are expected to have a 


future financial impact on [reporting unit] include: [provide list] 
 


1.5 Basis of consolidation 
 


The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the 
[reporting unit] and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by the 
[reporting unit] (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the [reporting unit] has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. 
 
Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of 
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive 
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the [reporting unit] and to the non-
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controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 
balance. 
 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the [reporting unit]. 
 
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 
Changes in the [reporting unit] ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the 
[reporting unit] losing control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying 
amounts of the [reporting unit] interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to 
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between 
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of 
the [reporting unit]. 
 
When the [reporting unit] loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair 
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the 
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at 
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are 
accounted for as if the [reporting unit] had directly disposed of the relevant assets 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified 
by applicable Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial 
recognition for subsequent accounting under AASB 139 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement’ or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an 
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity. 


 


1.5  Investment in associates 


 


An associate is an entity over which the [reporting unit] has significant influence and that 


is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power 


to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not 


control or joint control over those policies. 


 


The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial 


statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is 


classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with AASB 5 


‘Non-current Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.’ Under the equity 


method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the statement of financial 


position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the share of the profit or loss and 


other comprehensive income of the associate. When the share of losses of an associate 


exceeds the interest in that associate, the [reporting unit] discontinues recognising its 


share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that it has 


incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 


 


Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the share of the net fair value of the identifiable 


assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of 


acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the 


investment. Any excess of the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 


liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is 


recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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1.6 Business combinations 


 


The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, 


except for those identified in the Fair Work Commissions reporting guidelines under 


item 12. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the 


fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interest issued 


by the parent entity. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any 


contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity 


interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable 


assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 


combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values on 


acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the parent entity recognises any 


non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling 


interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. 


 


The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in 


the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the 


acquiree over the fair value of the parent entity’s share of the net identifiable assets is 


recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable 


assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been 


reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. 


 


If it is determined that the combination results in mutual benefit to both the members of 


the acquirer and the acquiree, the surplus of the fair value of the net identifiable assets 


acquired over the consideration paid will be recognised in member’s funds as a business 


combination reserve. 


 


Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in 


the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount 


rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which similar 


borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and 


conditions. 


 


Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts 


classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes 


in fair value recognised in profit or loss.  


 


1.7 Acquisition of assets and or liabilities that do not constitute a business 
combination  


 


The net book value of assets and or liabilities transferred to [reporting unit] for no 


consideration is used to account for an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the 


Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009/a restructure of the branches of the 


[reporting unit]/a determination by the General Manager under subsections 245(1) of the 


Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009/ a revocation by the General Manager 


under subsection 249(1) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.  


 


The assets and liabilities are recognised as at the date of transfer.  


 


1.8 Revenue  


 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  
 
Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as 
revenue in the year to which it relates. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when, the risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the buyer, the entity retains no managerial involvement or 
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effective control over the goods, the revenue and transaction costs incurred can be 
reliably measured, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
transaction will flow to the entity. 
 
Donation income is recognised when it is received. 
 
Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day terms, are recognised at the 
nominal amounts due less any impairment allowance account. Collectability of debts is 
reviewed at end of the reporting period. Allowances are made when collectability of the 
debt is no longer probable.  
 
Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 
 
Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. 


 


1.9 Government grants5 
 
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the 
[reporting unit] will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will 
be received. 


 
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods in which the [reporting unit] recognises as expenses the related costs for which 
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary 
condition is that the [reporting unit] should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial position 
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of 
the related assets. 


 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the [reporting unit] 
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they 
become receivable. 


 


1.10 Gains 


 
Sale of assets 


 


 Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has 


passed to the buyer. 


 


1.11 Capitation fees and levies 


 
Capitation fees and levies are to be recognised on an accrual basis and record as a 
revenue and/or expense in the year to which it relates. 


 


1.12 Employee benefits 


 


A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and 


salaries, annual leave, long service leave and termination benefits when it is probable 


that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.  


 


Liabilities for short-term employee benefits (as defined in AASB 119 Employee Benefits) 


and termination benefits due within twelve months of the end of reporting period are 


                                                


5
  Policy relevant for for-profit reporting units. Not-for-profit reporting units must comply with AASB1004 Contributions. 
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measured at their nominal amounts. The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the 


rates expected to be paid on settlement of the liability.  


  


 Other long-term employee benefits are measured as the present value of the estimated 


future cash outflows to be made by the reporting unit in respect of services provided by 


employees up to reporting date.  


  
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 
 
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. Reporting Unit 
recognises a provision for termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for 
the terminations and has informed those employees affected that it will carry out the 
terminations. 


  


1.13 Leases 


 


 Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 


substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are 


classified as operating leases. 


 


 Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either 


the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease 


payments at the inception of the contract and a liability is recognised at the same time 


and for the same amount.   


  


 The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are 


amortised over the period of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the 


principal component and the interest expense.  


  


 Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative 


of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets. 


 


Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 


of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 


operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on 


a straight-line basis over the lease term. 


 


1.14 Borrowing costs 


 


 All borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are 


incurred.  


 


1.15 Cash  


 


 Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 


hand, deposits held at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with 


original maturity of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 


cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank 


overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the 


consolidated statement of financial position. 


 


1.16 Financial instruments 
 


Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a [reporting unit] entity 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 


 


1.17 Financial assets  


 


Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at 


fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial 


assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose 


of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way 


purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date 


basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that 


require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in 


the marketplace.  


 
Fair value through profit or loss 


 


Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 


asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 


 


A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: 


 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 


 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 
reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or 


 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 


 


A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair 


value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 


 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 


 the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, 
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the reporting units documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 


 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss.  


 


Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 


or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 


recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial 


asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of 


comprehensive income.  


 
Held-to-maturity investments 
 


Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 


reporting unit has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-


to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost 


using the effective interest method less any impairment. 
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Available-for-sale 
 


Listed shares and listed redeemable notes held by the reporting unit that are traded in an 


active market are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. The 


reporting unit also has investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active 


market but that are also classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair 


value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other 


comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve, with the 


exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method, 


and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised in 


profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the 


cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is 


reclassified to profit or loss. 


 


Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when 


the reporting unit right to receive the dividends is established. The fair value of available-


for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 


currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign 


exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on 


the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are 


recognised in other comprehensive income. 


 
Loan and receivables 
 


Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments 


that are not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans 


and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 


impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-


term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. 


 
Effective interest method 
 


The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 


instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 


interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 


expected life of the financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 


carrying amount on initial recognition. 


 


Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other 


than those financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. 


 
Impairment of financial assets 


  


Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for 


impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be 


impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 


occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows 


of the investment have been affected. 


 


For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are 


assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a 


collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 


include the reporting units past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the 


number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, 


as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate 


with default on receivables. 
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss 


recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 


of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 


interest rate. 


 


For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 


the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 


estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar 


financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods. 


 


The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for 


all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is 


reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered 


uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of 


amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in 


the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. 


 


When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains 


or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit 


or loss in the period. 


 


For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount 


of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 


event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 


impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount 


of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the 


amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 


 


In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised 


in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value 


subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and 


accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of 


available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through 


profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to 


an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. 


 
Derecognition of financial assets 


 


The reporting unit derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the 


cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 


all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The difference 


between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 


receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 


comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 


 


1.18 Financial Liabilities 


 


Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or 


loss’ or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised 


upon ‘trade date’. 


 
Fair value through profit or loss 


 


Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 


liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 


 


A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 


 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 







Published 5 July 2013 www.fwc.gov.au  24/54 


 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 
reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or 


 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 
 


A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 


fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 


 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 


 the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or 
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the reporting units documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 


 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 


 


Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any 


gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or 


loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and 


is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of comprehensive 


income.  


 
Other financial liabilities 


 


Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and trade and other payables, are initially 


measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 


 


Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 


interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 


 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 


 


The reporting unit derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the reporting 


units obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the 


carrying amounts of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 


payable is recognised in profit or loss. 


 


1.19 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 


 


 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of 


Financial Position but are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty 


as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing liability or asset in 


respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are 


disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities 


are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote. 


 


1.20 Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment  


 
Asset Recognition Threshold 


 


 Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the 


Statement of Financial Position. The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the 


cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.  
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Revaluations—Land and Buildings 
 


Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at fair value less 


subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations 


are performed with sufficient frequency such that the carrying amount of assets do not 


differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values as at the reporting 


date.  


 


Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is 


credited to equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent 


that it reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was 


previously recognised in the surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets 


are recognised directly in the profit or loss except to the extent that they reverse a 


previous revaluation increment for that class. Any accumulated depreciation as at the 


revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 


asset is restated to the revalued amount. 


 
Depreciation 


 


 Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated 


residual values over their estimated useful life using, in all cases, the straight line method 


of depreciation. Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are 


reviewed at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are recognised in the 


current, or current and future reporting periods, as appropriate.  


 


 Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following 


useful lives: 


 


  2013  2012 


 Land & buildings x years  x years 


 Plant and equipment x to x years  x to x years 


 
Derecognition 
 
An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognised in the profit and loss. 
 


1.21 Investment property 
 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are 
measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit and loss in 
the period in which they arise. 
 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from 
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. 
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1.22 Intangibles 


 


 Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 


accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is 


recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful 


lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 


effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible 


assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 


accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of [reporting unit] intangible assets are: 
 
  2013  2012 


 Intangibles x to x years  x to x years 


 
Derecognition 
 


An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits 


are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 


intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 


carrying amount of the asset are recognised in profit and loss when the asset is 


derecognised. 


 


1.23 Impairment for non-financial assets  


 


All assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period to the extent 


that there is an impairment trigger. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset’s 


recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset’s 


recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.  


 


The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 


value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be 


derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily 


dependent on the asset’s ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be 


replaced if the [reporting unit] were deprived of the asset, its value in use is taken to be 


its depreciated replacement cost. 


 


1.24 Non-current assets held for sale 


 


Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 


recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 


condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current 


asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be 


committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 


completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 


 


Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous 


carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 


 


1.25 Taxation 


 


 [Reporting unit] is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax 


Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the 


Goods and Services Tax (GST). 


 


 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except: 


 where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 
Office; and  


 for receivables and payables. 
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The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 


as part of receivables or payables. 


 


Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST 


component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is 


recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within 


operating cash flows. 


 


1.26 Going concern 


 


[Reporting unit] is reliant on the agreed financial support of [xx] to continue on a going 


concern basis. This agreed financial support is to continue until [xx]. This is an interest 


free agreement with repayments to be made on a [xx] basis from [xx]. 


 


[Reporting unit] has agreed to provide [xx] with financial support to ensure they can 


continue on a going concern basis. This agreed financial support is to continue until [xx]. 


This is an interest free agreement with repayments to be made on a [xx] basis from [xx]. 
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Note 2 Events after the reporting period 
 


There were no events that occurred after 30 June 2013, or prior to the signing of the financial 


statements, that would affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of [reporting unit]. 


  


 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Note 3 Income 
 


Note 3A: Capitation fees* 


 


[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 


Total capitation fees - - - - 


     


 


Note 3B: Levies* 


 


[list purpose and amount for each compulsory 


or voluntary levy or appeal] 


- - 
- - 


Total levies - - - - 


     


 


Note 3C: Interest 


 


Deposits - - - - 


Loans - - - - 


Total interest - - - - 


     


 


Note 3D: Rental revenue 


 


Properties - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total rental revenue - - - - 


     


 


Note 3E: Grants or donations* 


 


Grants - - - - 


Donations - - - - 


Total grants or donations - - - - 


     


 


Note 3F: Net gains from sale of assets 


 


Land and buildings - - - - 


Plant and equipment - - - - 


Intangibles - - - - 


Total net gain from sale of assets - - - - 


 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 4  Expenses 
 


Note 4A: Employee expenses* 


 


Holders of office:     


Wages and salaries - - - - 


Superannuation - - - - 


Leave and other entitlements - - - - 


Separation and redundancies - - - - 


Other employee expenses - - - - 


Subtotal employee expenses holders of 


office 
- - - - 


     


Employees other than office holders:     


Wages and salaries - - - - 


Superannuation - - - - 


Leave and other entitlements - - - - 


Separation and redundancies - - - - 


Other employee expenses - - - - 


Subtotal employee expenses employees 


other than office holders 
- - - - 


Total employee expenses - - - - 


     


 


Note 4B: Capitation fees* 


 


[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 


Total capitation fees - - - - 


     


 


 


Note 4C: Affiliation fees* 


 


[list name and amount for each entity] - - - - 


Total affiliation fees/subscriptions - - - - 


     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 
 


Note 4D: Administration expenses 
 


Consideration to employers for payroll 


deductions* 
- - - - 


Compulsory levies*     


[list each compulsory levy including 


purpose and name of entity] 
- - - - 


Fees/allowances - meeting and conferences* - - - - 


Conference and meeting expenses* - - - - 


Contractors/consultants - - - - 


Property expenses - - - - 


Office expenses - - - - 


Information communications technology - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Subtotal administration expense - - - - 


     


Operating lease rentals:     


Minimum lease payments - - - - 


Total administration expenses - - - - 


     
 


Note 4E: Grants or donations* 
 


Grants - - - - 


Donations - - - - 


Total grants or donations - - - - 


     
 


Note 4F: Depreciation and amortisation 
 


Depreciation     


Land & buildings - - - - 


Property, plant and equipment - - - - 


Total depreciation - - - - 


Amortisation     


Intangibles - - - - 


Total amortisation - - - - 


Total depreciation and amortisation - - - - 


     
 


Note 4G: Finance costs 
 


Finance leases - - - - 


Overdrafts/loans - - - - 


Unwinding of discount - - - - 


Total finance costs - - - - 


 


 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 4H: Legal costs* 


 


Litigation - - - - 


Other legal matters - - - - 


Total legal costs - - - - 


     


 


Note 4I: Write-down and impairment of assets 


 


Asset write-downs and impairments of:     


Land and buildings - - - - 


Plant and equipment - - - - 


Intangible assets - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total write-down and impairment of assets - - - - 


 


Note 4J: Net losses from sale of assets 


 


Land and buildings - - - - 


Plant and equipment - - - - 


Intangibles - - - - 


Total net losses from asset sales - - - - 


     


 


Note 4K: Other expenses 


 


Penalties - via RO Act or RO Regulations* - - - - 


Total other expenses - - - - 


     


 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 5 Current Assets 
 


Note 5A: Cash and Cash Equivalents 


 


Cash at bank  - - - - 


Cash on hand - - - - 


Short term deposits - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total cash and cash equivalents - - - - 


     


 


 


Note 5B: Trade and Other Receivables 


 


Receivables from other reporting unit[s]*     


[list name and amount for each other 


reporting unit] 
- - - - 


Total receivables from other reporting 


unit[s] 
- - - - 


 


Less provision for doubtful debts*     


[list name and amount for each other 


reporting unit] 
- - - - 


Total provision for doubtful debts - - - - 


Receivable from other reporting unit[s] 


(net) 
- - - - 


 


Other receivables:     


GST receivable from the Australian 


Taxation Office 
- - - - 


Other trade receivables - - - - 


Total other receivables - - - - 


Total trade and other receivables (net) - - - - 


 


Note 5C: Other Current Assets 


 


[Disclose each asset class] - - - - 


Total other current assets - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 6 Non-current Assets 
 


Note 6A: Land and buildings  


 


Land and buildings:     


 fair value - - - - 


 accumulated depreciation - - - - 


Total land and buildings  - - - - 


     


 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Land and Buildings 


 


As at 1 July      


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 


Net book value 1 July  - - - - 


Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 


From acquisition of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


Revaluations - - - - 


Impairments - - - - 


Depreciation expense - - - - 


Other movement [give details below] - - - - 


Disposals:     


 From disposal of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


 Other - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 


Net book value as of 30 June represented 


by: 
    


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 6B: Plant and equipment  


 


Plant and equipment:     


 at cost - - - - 


 accumulated depreciation - - - - 


Total plant and equipment  - - - - 


 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Plant and Equipment 
 


As at 1 July      


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 


Net book value 1 July  - - - - 


Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 


From acquisition of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


Impairments - - - - 


Depreciation expense - - - - 


Other movement [give details below] - - - - 


Disposals:    - 


 From disposal of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


 Other - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 


Net book value as of 30 June represented 


by: 
    


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 


 


Note 6C: Intangibles  


 


Computer software at cost:     


 internally developed  - - - - 


 purchased - - - - 


 accumulated amortisation  - - - - 


Total intangibles  - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 
Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Intangibles  


 


As at 1 July      


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated amortisation and impairment - - - - 


Net book value 1 July  - - - - 


Additions:     


By purchase  - - - - 


From acquisition of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


Impairments - - - - 


Amortisation  - - - - 


Other movements [give details below] - - - - 


Disposals:     


From disposal of entities (including 


restructuring) 
- - - - 


Other - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 


 


Net book value as of 30 June represented 


by: 


    


Gross book value - - - - 


Accumulated amortisation and impairment  - - - - 


Net book value 30 June  - - - - 


 


Note 6D: Investments in Associates 


 


Investments in associates:     


[list associates] - - - - 


Total equity accounted investments - - - - 


 
Details of investments accounted for using the equity method 
 


Consolidated  Ownership 


Name of entity Principal 


activity 


2013 


% 


2012 


% 


Associates:    


[list ]i - - - 


 


(i) The published fair value for the investment in [name of associates] is $x (2011: $x) 


 


Parent  Ownership 


Name of entity Principal 


activity 


2013 


% 


2012 


% 


Associates:    


[list ]i - - - 


 


(i) The published fair value for the investment in [name of associates] is $x (2011: $x) 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 
Summary financial information of associates 
 


Statement of financial position:     


Assets - - - - 


Liabilities - - - - 


Net assets - - - - 


Statement of comprehensive income:     


Income - - - - 


Expenses  - - - - 


Net surplus/(deficit) - - - - 


Share of associates’ net surplus/(deficit):     


Share of net surplus/(deficit) before tax - - - - 


Income tax expense - - - - 


Share of associates net surplus/(deficit) 


after tax 
- - - - 


 


Dividends received from associates $x (2011:$x) 


 
Share of net profits from associates 


 


[list each entity] - - - - 


Total share of net profits from associates - - - - 


     


 
Share of net loss from associates 
 


[list each entity] - - - - 


Total share of net loss from associates - - - - 


     


 


Note 6E: Other Investments  


 


Deposits - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total other investments  - - - - 


     


 


Note 6F: Other Non-current Assets 


 


Prepayments - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total other non-financial assets - - - - 


     







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 7 Current Liabilities 
 


Note 7A: Trade payables 


 


Trade creditors and accruals - - - - 


Operating lease rentals - - - - 


Subtotal trade creditors - - - - 


     


Payables to other reporting unit[s]*     


[list name and amount for each reporting unit] - - - - 


Subtotal payables to other reporting 


unit[s] 
- - - - 


     


Total trade payables - - - - 


 


Settlement is usually made within 30 days. 


 


Note 7B: Other payables 


 


Wages and salaries - - - - 


Superannuation - - - - 


Consideration to employers for payroll 


deductions* 
- - - - 


Legal costs* - - - - 


Prepayments received/unearned revenue - - - - 


GST payable - - - - 


Other - - - - 


Total other payables - - - - 


 


Total other payables are expected to be 


settled in: 


    


No more than 12 months - - - - 


More than 12 months - - - - 


Total other payables - - - - 


 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 8 Provisions 
 


Note 8A: Employee Provisions* 


 


Office Holders:     


Annual leave - - - - 


Long service leave - - - - 


Separations and redundancies - - - - 


Other  - - - - 


Subtotal employee provisions—office 


holders 
- - - - 


Employees other than office holders:     


Annual leave - - - - 


Long service leave - - - - 


Separations and redundancies - - - - 


Other  - - - - 


Subtotal employee provisions—employees 


other than office holders 
- - - - 


Total employee provisions - - - - 


     


Current  - - - - 


Non Current - - - - 


Total employee provisions - - - - 


 


Note 9 Non-current Liabilities  
 


Note 9A: Other non-current liabilities 


 


[list classes] - - - - 


Total other non-current liabilities - - - - 


 


Note 10 Equity 
 


Note 10A: General Funds 


 


[insert name of individual fund/reserve]     


Balance as at start of year - - - - 


Transferred to reserve - - - - 


Transferred out of reserve - - - - 


Balance as at end of year - - - - 


[insert name of individual fund/reserve]     


Balance as at start of year - - - - 


Transferred to reserve - - - - 


Transferred out of reserve - - - - 


Balance as at end of year - - - - 







* As required by the Reporting Guidelines. Item to remain even if ‘nil’. 
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Total Reserves - - - - 


 


 


 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 11 Cash Flow  
 


Note 11A: Cash Flow Reconciliation 


 


Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per 


Balance Sheet to Cash Flow Statement: 
 


  


     


Cash and cash equivalents as per:     


Cash flow statement - - - - 


Balance sheet - - - - 


Difference -  - - - 


 


The difference is represented by... (to be included only where there is a difference). 


 


Reconciliation of profit/(deficit) to net cash 


from operating activities: 
  


  


Profit/(deficit) for the year - - - - 


     


Adjustments for non-cash items     


Depreciation/amortisation - - - - 


Net write-down of non-financial assets - - - - 


Gain on disposal of assets - - - - 


     


Changes in assets/liabilities     


(Increase)/decrease in net receivables  - - - - 


(Increase)/decrease in prepayments - - - - 


Increase/(decrease) in supplier payables - - - - 


Increase/(decrease) in other payables - - - - 


Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions - - - - 


Increase/(decrease) in other provisions - - - - 


Net cash from (used by) operating 


activities 
- - - - 


 


Note 11B: Cash flow information* 


 


Cash inflows     


[list each reporting unit/controlled entity] - - - - 


Total cash inflows - - - - 


     


Cash outflows     


[list each reporting unit/controlled entity] - - - - 


Total cash outflows - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 12 Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments 
 


Note 12A: Commitments and Contingencies 


 


Operating lease commitments—as lessee 


[Details of the nature of the leases and the average remaining term] 


Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as 


follows: 


Within one year - - - - 


After one year but not more than five years - - - - 


More than five years - - - - 


  - - - - 


Operating lease commitments—as lessor 


[Details of the nature of the leases and average remaining terms, including any provisions for fixed 


increases in rent] 


 


Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as 


follows: 


Within one year - - - - 


After one year but not more than five years - - - - 


After five years - - - - 


  - - - - 


Capital commitments 


At 30 June 2013 the entity has commitments of $XX (2012: XX) principally relating to XXX. 


 


Finance lease commitments—as lessee 


Within one year - - - - 


After one year but not more than five years - - - - 


More than five years - - - - 


Total minimum lease payments - - - - 


Less amounts representing finance charges - - - - 


Present value of minimum lease 


payments 
- - - - 


      


Included in the financial statements as: - - - - 


Current interest-bearing loans and 


borrowings 
- - - - 


Non-current interest-bearing loans and 


borrowings 
- - - - 


Total included in interest-bearing loans 


and borrowings 
- - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Finance leases—lessor     


[Insert general description of lease arrangements] 


Minimum lease payments - - - - 


Unguaranteed residual value - - - - 


Gross investment - - - - 


Unearned finance income - - - - 


Net investment (present value of the 


minimum lease payments) 
- - - - 


      


Gross amount of minimum lease 


payments: 


    


Within one year - - - - 


After one year but not more than five years - - - - 


More than five years - - - - 


Total gross amount of minimum lease 


payments 
- - - - 


      


Present value of minimum lease payments:     


Within one year - - - - 


After one year but not more than five years - - - - 


More than five years - - - - 


Total present value of minimum lease 


payments 
- - - - 


      


 


Other contingent assets or liabilities (i.e. legal claims) 


 


[Insert details including an estimate of the financial effect of contingent assets or liabilities. With 


respect to contingent liabilities, uncertainties around the outflow of resources required to settle the 


contingent obligation should be disclosed and any possible reimbursement. Contingencies may be 


aggregated only if they relate to a similar class.] 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Note 13 Related Party Disclosures 
 


Note 13A: Related Party Transactions for the Reporting Period 


 


[List all related party transactions including the nature of the related party relationship, information 


about those transactions, terms and conditions, amount of the transaction and outstanding balances 


including commitments.] 


 


The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related 


parties for the relevant year.  


 


Revenue received from [list related party] 


includes the following: 
  


  


[list individual items] - - - - 


     


Expenses paid to [list related party] 


includes the following: 
    


[list individual items] - - - - 


     


Amounts owed by [list related party] 


include the following:  
    


[list individual items] - - - - 


     


Amounts owed to [list related party] 


include the following: 
    


[list individual items] - - - - 


     


Loans from/to [list related party] includes 


the following: 
  


  


[list individual items] - - - - 


     


Assets transferred from/to [list related 


party] includes the following: 
    


[list individual items] - - - - 


 


Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 


 


The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 


arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances for sales and purchases at the year end are 


unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided 


or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 30 June 2013, the 


[reporting unit] has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related 


parties and declared person or body (2012: $Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year 


through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 


operates.  
 


The loan provided to [list related party] receives a rate of interest of x% and is repayable after x years. 
 


Property with a book value of $x was transferred to [list related party] for $x consideration which 


represents market price for such an asset. 
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Premises on a rent free basis were provided to [list related party] for a period of six months. Had 


market rental been charged by the reporting unit the amount received would have been $x. 


 


 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 13B: Key Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period 


 


Short-term employee benefits     


Salary (including annual leave taken) - - - - 


Annual leave accrued - - - - 


Performance bonus - - - - 


[other major categories] - - - - 


Total short-term employee benefits - - - - 


     


Post-employment benefits:     


Superannuation  - - - - 


Total post-employment benefits - - - - 


     


Other long-term benefits:     


Long-service leave - - - - 


Total other long-term benefits - - - - 


     


Termination benefits - - - - 


Total - - - - 


 


Note 13C: Transactions with key management personnel and their close family members 


 


Loans to/from key management personnel     


[list individual and details of the loans 


including terms and conditions] 
- - - - 


     


Other transactions with key management 


personnel 
    


[list individuals and details of the transactions 


including terms and conditions] 
- - - - 


 


Note 14 Remuneration of Auditors 
 


Value of the services provided     


Financial statement audit services - - - - 


Other services - - - - 


Total remuneration of auditors - - - - 


 


[No other services were provided by the auditors of the financial statements.] or [Provide details of 


other services provided by the auditors of the financial statements.] 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 15 Financial Instruments 
 


[General discussion on how the entity manages risk and the risk exposures (i.e. credit risk, liquidity 


risk, price/interest rate market risks) 


 


Note 15A: Categories of Financial Instruments 


 
Financial Assets 
 


Fair value through profit or loss:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


Held-to-maturity investments:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


Available-for-sale assets:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


Loans and receivables:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


     


Carrying amount of financial assets - - - - 


 
Financial Liabilities 
 


Fair value through profit or loss:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


Other financial liabilities:     


[list categories] - - - - 


Total - - - - 


     


Carrying amount of financial liabilities - - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 15B: Net Income and Expense from Financial Assets 


 
Held-to-maturity   


Interest revenue  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Impairment  -  - - - 


Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) held-to-maturity  -  - - - 


Loans and receivables   


Interest revenue  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Impairment  -  - - - 


Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from loans and receivables  -  - - - 


Available for sale   


Interest revenue  -  - - - 


Dividend revenue  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Gain/loss recognised in equity  -  - - - 


Amounts reversed from equity:   


Impairment  -  - - - 


Fair value changes reversed on disposal  -  - - - 


Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from available for sale  -  - - - 


Fair value through profit and loss   


Held for trading:   


Change in fair value  -  - - - 


Interest revenue  -  - - - 


Dividend revenue  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Total held for trading  -  - - - 


Designated as fair value through profit and loss:   


Change in fair value  -  - - - 


Interest revenue  -  - - - 


Dividend revenue  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Total designated as fair value through 


profit and loss  
-  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) at fair value through profit 


and loss  
-  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from financial assets  -  - - - 


The net income/expense from financial assets not at fair value from profit and loss is $... (2012: $...).  
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 15C: Net Income and Expense from Financial Liabilities 


 
At amortised cost   


Interest expense  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Gain/loss on disposal  -  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) financial liabilities - at 


amortised cost  
-  - - - 


Fair value through profit and loss   


Held for trading:   


Change in fair value  -  - - - 


Interest expense  -  - - - 


Exchange gains/(loss)  -  - - - 


Total held for trading  -  - - - 


Designated as fair value through profit and loss:   


Change in fair value  -  - - - 


Interest expense  -  - - - 


Total designated as fair value through 


profit and loss  
-  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) at fair value through profit 


and loss  
-  - - - 


Net gain/(loss) from financial liabilities  -  - - - 


The net income/expense from financial liabilities not at fair value from profit and loss is $ ... (2012: $...). 


 


Note 15D: Fair Value of Financial Instruments 


 
Consolidated Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 


 amount value amount value 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Financial Assets 


[List each class] - -  -  -  


Total  - -  -  -  


Financial Liabilities 


[List each class]  -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  - 


   


Parent Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 


 amount value amount value 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


Financial Assets 


[List each class] - -  -  -  


Total  - -  -  -  


Financial Liabilities 


[List each class]  -  -  -  - 
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Total  -  -  -  - 


 


Fair value measurements categorised by fair value hierarchy—Consolidated 


The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value, 


by valuation method. 


The different levels are defined below: 


Level 1: Fair value obtained from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 


instruments 


Level 2: Fair value derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 


observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly. 


Level 3: Fair value derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. 


Fair value hierarchy for financial assets 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 


[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 


[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 


 


Fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 


[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 


[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 


 


Fair value measurements categorised by fair value hierarchy—Parent 


The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value, 


by valuation method. 


The different levels are defined below: 


Level 1: Fair value obtained from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 


instruments 


Level 2: Fair value derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 


observable for the instrument, either directly or indirectly. 


Level 3: Fair value derived from inputs that are not based on observable market data. 


Fair value hierarchy for financial assets 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 


[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 


[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 


 


Fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities 


 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


[List Category] 


[List each class]  -  -  -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  -  -  - 


[Class] was transferred from [Level 1/Level 2] to [Level 1/Level 2] due to [reasons for transfer]. 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 15E: Credit Risk 


 
[discussion of exposure to risk, objectives and policies for managing risk and changes from prior 


period][identify concentrations of risk] 


The following table illustrates the entity's gross exposure to credit risk, excluding any 


collateral or credit enhancements. 


 


Financial assets   


[List by class] - - - - 


Total  -  - - - 


Financial liabilities   


[List by class]  - - -  - 


Total  - - -  - 


In relation to the entity's gross credit risk the following collateral is held: [insert details] 


 
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired - 


Consolidated 


 Not Past 


Due Nor 


Impaired 


Past due or 


impaired 


Not Past 


Due Nor 


Impaired 


Past due or 


impaired 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  - 


[provide relevant details regarding credit risk and quality of each class of financial asset that is 


either not past due nor impaired or past due or impaired] 


 
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired - 


Parent 


 Not Past 


Due Nor 


Impaired 


Past due or 


impaired 


Not Past 


Due Nor 


Impaired 


Past due or 


impaired 


 2013 2013 2012 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] -  -  -  - 


Total  -  -  -  - 


[provide relevant details regarding credit risk and quality of each class of financial asset that is 


either not past due nor impaired or past due or impaired] 


 
Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2013—Consolidated 


 0 to 30 


days 


31 to 60 


days 


61 to 90 


days 
90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] - - - - - 


Total - - - - - 
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Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2012—Consolidated 


 
0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days 


61 to 90 


days 
90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] - - - - - 


Total - - - - - 


The following list of assets have been individually assessed as impaired 


[including factors that have been used in assessing the asset to be impaired] 


 
Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2013—Parent 


 0 to 30 


days 


31 to 60 


days 


61 to 90 


days 
90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] - - - - - 


Total - - - - - 


 


Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2012—Consolidated 


 
0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days 


61 to 90 


days 
90+ days Total 


 $ $ $ $ $ 


[List by class] - - - - - 


Total - - - - - 


The following list of assets have been individually assessed as impaired 


[including factors that have been used in assessing the asset to be impaired] 


 


Note 15F: Liquidity Risk 


 
[Discuss how the entity manages liquidity risk for non-derivative financial liabilities]  


Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2013 - Consolidated 


 


On 


Demand 


< 1 year 


$ 


1– 2 


years 


$ 


2– 5 


years 


$ 


>5 years 


$ 


Total 


$ 


[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  


Total  - -  - -  -  -  


Maturities for financial liabilities 2012 - Consolidated 


 


On 


Demand 


< 1 year 


$ 


1– 2 years 


$ 


2– 5 


years 


$ 


>5 years 


$ 


Total 


$ 


[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  


Total  - -  - -  -  -  


Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2013 - Parent 


 


On 


Demand 


< 1 year 


$ 


1– 2 


years 


$ 


2– 5 


years 


$ 


>5 years 


$ 


Total 


$ 


[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  


Total  - -  - -  -  -  


Maturities for financial liabilities 2012 - Parent 


 


On 


Demand 


< 1 year 


$ 


1– 2 years 


$ 


2– 5 


years 


$ 


>5 years 


$ 


Total 


$ 
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[List by class]  -  -  - -  -  -  


Total  - -  - -  -  -  


Note 15G: Market Risk 


 
[Market risks generally include interest rate risk, price risk, and currency risk—insert discussion 


market risks which the entity is exposed to]  


Interest rate risk 


 


[Method and assumptions used for sensitivity analysis for 2013 and 2012, where the method 


changes between years disclose reasons why] (delete risk if not appropriate) 


Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2013 


 


 Change in 


risk 


variable % 


Effect on 


 Risk 


variable 


Profit and 


loss 


Equity 


  $ $ 


Interest rate risk - [+ Rate] - - 


Interest rate risk - [- Rate] - - 


 


Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2012 


 


 Change in 


risk 


variable % 


Effect on 


 Risk 


variable 


Profit and 


loss 


Equity 


  $ $ 


Interest rate risk - [+ Rate] - - 


Interest rate risk - [- Rate] - - 


[Where the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the risk inherent in a financial instrument—


an entity discloses this fact and the reasons why] 


 


Price risk 


[insert discussion on price risk] 


[Method and assumptions used for sensitivity analysis for 2013 and 2012, where the method 


changes between years disclose reasons why] (delete risk if not appropriate) 


 


Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2013 


 


 Change in 


risk 


variable % 


Effect on 


 Risk 


variable 


Profit and 


loss 


Equity 


  $ $ 


Other price risk - [+ Rate] - - 


Other price risk - [- Rate] - - 


 


Sensitivity analysis of the risk that the entity is exposed to for 2012 


 


 Change in 


risk 


variable % 


Effect on 


 Risk 


variable 


Profit and 


loss 


Equity 


  $ $ 


Other price risk - [+ Rate] - - 
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Other price risk - [- Rate] - - 


[Where the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the risk inherent in a financial instrument—


an entity discloses this fact and the reasons why] 


 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 
 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 15H: Asset Pledged/or Held as Collateral 


 
Assets pledged as collateral 


Financial assets pledged as collateral: 


[List]  -  - - - 


Total assets pledged as collateral  -  - - - 


[terms and conditions related to pledge] 


Assets held as collateral 


Fair value of assets held as collateral: 


Financial assets  -  - - - 


Non-financial assets  -  - - - 


Total assets held as collateral  -  - - - 


[Terms and conditions of collateral held] 


[Fair value of collateral sold or re-pledged, and whether the entity has an obligation to return it] 


[Terms and conditions of collateral held] 


[Fair value of collateral sold or re-pledged, and whether the entity has an obligation to return it] 


 


Note 16 Business combinations 


Subsidiaries acquired 


 


    


Name of entity Principal 


activity 


Date of 


acquisition 


Proportion 


of shares 


acquired 


% 


Consideration 


transferred 


2013:     


[list ] - - - - 


     


2012:     


[list] - - - - 


 


Consideration transferred 


 


2013: [Entity] [Entity] 


   


Cash - - 


Transfer of land & buildings at fair value at date of acquisition - - 


Total - - 


 


2012: [Entity] [Entity] 


   


Cash - - 


Transfer of land & buildings at fair value at date of acquisition - - 


Total - - 
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition 


 


 [Entity] [Entity] Total 


2013:    


Current assets    


Cash and cash equivalents - - - 


Trade and other receivables - - - 


Inventories - - - 


Non-current assets    


Plant and equipment - - - 


Current liabilities     


Trade and other payables - - - 


Non-current liabilities   - 


Deferred tax liabilities - - - 


Contingent liabilities - - - 


 - - - 


 


 [Entity] [Entity] Total 


2012:    


Current assets    


Cash and cash equivalents - - - 


Trade and other receivables - - - 


Inventories - - - 


Non-current assets    


Plant and equipment - - - 


Current liabilities     


Trade and other payables - - - 


Non-current liabilities    


Deferred tax liabilities - - - 


Contingent liabilities - - - 


 - - - 


 


Goodwill arising on acquisition 


 


 [Entity] [Entity] Total 


2013:    


Consideration transferred    


Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired - - - 


Goodwill arising on acquisition - - - 


 


 [Entity] [Entity] Total 


2012:    


Consideration transferred    


Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired - - - 


Goodwill arising on acquisition - - - 
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 Consolidated Parent 


 2013 2012 2013 2012 


 $ $ $ $ 


 


Note 17 Administration of financial affairs by a third party6 
 


Name of entity providing service:  


Terms and conditions:  


Nature of expenses/consultancy service:  


 


Detailed breakdown of revenues collected and/or expenses incurred 


 


 Revenue     


 Membership subscription - - - - 


 Capitation fees - - - - 


 Levies - - - - 


 Interest - - - - 


 Rental revenue - - - - 


 Other revenue - - - - 


 Grants and/or donations - - - - 


 Total revenue  - - - - 


      


 Expenses     


 Employee expense - - - - 


 Capitation fees - - - - 


 Affiliation fees - - - - 


 
Consideration to employers for payroll 


deductions 
- - - - 


 Compulsory levies - - - - 


 
Fees/allowances - meeting and 


conferences 
- - - - 


 Conference and meeting expenses - - - - 


 Administration expenses - - - - 


 Grants or donations - - - - 


 Finance costs - - - - 


 Legal costs - - - - 


 Audit fees - - - - 


 
Penalties - via RO Act or RO 


Regulations 
- - - - 


 Other expenses - - - - 


 Total expenses - - - - 


      


 


                                                


6
  Refer to item 34 in the Reporting Guidelines. 
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Note 18 Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
 


In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 


attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which 


reads as follows: 


 


Information to be provided to members or the General Manager of Fair Work Australia: 


 
(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager of Fair Work Australia, may 


apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the 
reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 


 
(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 


manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 


 
(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 


 


 







RTBU 
16 June 2014 
To Mr. STEPHEN KELLETI 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 
FAIR WORK COMMISSION 

80 William Street 
EAST SYDNEY NSW 2011 

RAIL, TRAM & BUS UNION AUSTRALIA 

Subject:- RTBU 2013 Financial Report. 

Dear Sir, 

Please find attached, in accordance with s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations') Act 2009 , the RTBU 2013, Financial Reporting package. 

This package incorporates; 

• Certificate by National Secretary (Designated Officer), (Attachment A) 
• A copy of the Full Financial Accounts, including the Audit Report., 

(Attachment B) 
• A copy of the Concise Report provided to our members.(Attachment C) 

Regar9J1!} 
/ 1'/Yc#t--

AIIan Barden 
Assistant National Secretary 

Office: Trades Hall, S1J1te 210. ~--1~ Goulburn St. SydnE!y NSW 2000 
Phone: (02) 931 0 3966 Fax: (0:2) 9.319 .2096 Emcul: rtbu@rcbu org.au 



ATTACHMENT A 



RAIL TRAM AND BUS UNION NATIONAL OFFICE 

s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Aot 2009 

CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER 

Certificate for the period ended 31 December 2013 

I, Bob Nanva, being the National Secretary of the Rail Tram and Bus Union National office, 
certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report concise report for 
the Rail Tram and Bus Union for the period ended 31 December 2013 referred to in 
s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the concise report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 29 May 
2014;and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the committee of management of 
the reporting unit on 16 June 2014 in accordance with s.266 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Aot 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer: 

Name of prescribed designated officer: Bob Nanva 

Trtle of prescribed designated officer: National Secretary 

Dated: 16 June 2014 



ATTACHMENT B 



1\CATIO!'IAI.. OfFICE 

ABN t s .91t 12S 41ll 

ANNUAL !iru>olli 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION ~ NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR 1liE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Operating Report 

This Operating Report covers: 

• the activities of the Australian Rail, Tram & Bus Industry Union, National Office, for 
the financial year ended 31st December 2013, 

• the results of those activities and 
• any significant changes in the nature of those activities as required under s.254 Fair 

Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

The principal activities of the National Office of the Union, as conducted through the 
National Office. during the past year fell into the following categories: 

ACTIVITIES 
MaKing agreements with empJo_yers 
Implementation of the decisions of the National Executive and National 
Council 
Implementation of the union's organising agenda, including direct assistance 
and strategic advice on particular industry or site organising projects, the 
training and development of officials and assistance to branches on planning 
and resourcing campaigns. 
Industrial support including representation of individual member grievances, 
advice on legal and legislative matters, holding of union elections as 
provided for in the rules of the union, and responding to the needs of 
branches and members as provided for within the rules of the union, within 
the scope of any statutory or legal obligations. 
The administration of federal awards, the certification of federal industrial 
agreements, the variation of awards following major test cases, and making 
application to vary federal awards on behalf of branches. 
National media and communications to members, branches and the broader 
community via media releases in support of campaigns, web based 
technology, including the national magazine The Voice. 
Coordination of and Negotiation of key national industries, and assistance to 
branches on bargaining by request. 

The National Offtee has consulted with the ACTU on the development of 
claims to be pursued in the AIRC and union policy in general. Where 
appropriate, the National Office has assisted branches in the implementation 
of relevant decisions via the variation of awards. 
The National Office has been involved in campaigns and negotiations with 
government, political parties and industry organisations, including with 
financial donations and/or other support, around issues of importance for 
members, eg EBA negotiations training, skill shortages fatigue laws. 
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• The 2012 elections had carried over into 2013, and were declared by the Australian 
Electoral Commission on the 51

h Apri12013 for contested positions and the 81
h April 

2013 for the uncontested positions. This meant tl1at in some positions there were 
two office holders for the respective terms of office for 2013. 

•Due to the resignation of the SAINT Branch Secretary on the 261
h September 2013, 

a new Branch Secretary was appointed, in accordance: with the registered rules, 
on the same date and therefore was also a member of tne National Executive by 
the nature of the Office of Branch Secretary. 

• The following Rule Changes were ratified during 2013: 

o Alterations to the Federally Registered Uniform Rules of the Rail Tram and 
Bus Industry Union were, Rules 47, 100 and 101. 

o New rules that were added to the Federally Registered Uniform Rules of 
the Rail Tram and Bus Industry Union were, Rules 106 and 179A 

The financial affairs of the National Office have altered significantly due to the 
following: 

• The engagement of consultants to implement a series of governing body 
recommendations concerning research, policy, development and publicity. 

• Legal expenses in relation to advocacy, EBA and union structures advice. 
• An increase in Meeting and Conference expense due to there being a National 

Council during 2013. 
• Increase in real property assets held by the ARTBIU to reflect changes in legal 

status of 83-89 Renwick St, Redfern. 

All Members of the Union have the right to resign from the Union in accordance with Rule 
14 of the Union Rules (and Section 174 of Fair Work (RO) Ac12009); namely by 
providing notice addressed and delivered to the Secretary of the relevant Branch, 
including via email. 

14- RESIGNATION FROM MEMBERSHIP 

(1) A member of an organisation may resign from membership by written notice 
addressed and delivered to a person designated for the purpose in the rules of the 
organisation or a branch of the organisation. 

Note: The notice of resignation can be given electronicaHy if the organisation's rules aUow for this (see 
section g of the Electronic Transac;t;ons Act 1999). 



(2) A notice of resignation from membership of an organisation takes effect: 

(a) where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the 
organisation: 
(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the organisation; or 
(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the 

day when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 
. whichever is later; or 

{b) in any other case: 
(i) at the end of 2 weeks, or such shorter period as is specified in the 

rules of 1he organisation, after the notice is received by the 
organisation; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 
whichever is later. 

(3) Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of an organisation, in relation 
to a period before the member's resignation from the organisation took effect, may 
be sued for and recovered in the name of the organisation, in a court of competent 
jurisdiction, as a debt due to the organisation. 

(4) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in subsection (1) is taken to have been 
received by the organisation when it was delivered. 

(5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the organisation is not invalid 
be,cause it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with subsection (1). 

(6) A resignation from membership of an organisation is valid even if it is not effected 
in accordance with this section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf 
of the organisation that the resignation has been accepted. 

Note: Regulations may require employers who offer payroll deduction facilities to inform employees that 
cessation of payroll deduction by an employee does not constitute resignation (aee section 359). 

[5. · _.B_Qard Positloqa-'~el~_by·~ffiC.rs~.~ploy_..s:.()f_the··Nittionai~Offic• to .~e ·. ·· ., .,.;_~ 
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, only the following Officers held any of the 
following positions by virtue of their office of the Rait Tram and Bus Union National 
Council are: 

• a trustee of a superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation 
scheme; or 

• a director of a company that is the trustee of a superannuation entity or an exempt 
public sector superannuation scheme; and 

• where a criterion for the officer being ttle trustee or director is that the officer is an 
officer of a re.gistered organisation. 

The member(s) listed below hold the following po·sition(s) as trustees or company 
directors: 
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Bob Nanva • Transport & Logistics Industry Skills Council - Director 
• Tracksafe· Foundation~ Director 
• Department of Infrastructure & Transport, High Speed 

Rail Advisory Group - Member 

Allan Barden • Tracksafe Foundation- Director 
Alex Claassens • By virtue of his office within RTBU NSW Branch, 

Employee representative, appointed to the Board of 
the State Trustee Corporation 

• Membership elected Director, Encompass Credit 
Union 

-·-

There were 34,082 members of the union as at 31st December 2013. 

As at 31 December 2013 the National Office employed 6 full time employees, 1 part time 
employee, with a total number of 6~ employees on a full time equivalent basis. 

'a·' · .;< .t .M .. '·'tie .. · fth tJ· u·" . p: ... :..... . tl •.. ~- ., em . _r:so . ~ .. . a . QP.A ~~c:aJ . ~_.._ 

The following persons were members of the National Executive, during the year ending 
31 111 December 2013; 

Bob Nanva National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 3.1/1212013 

Allan Barden Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Owen Doogan National President 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

James Styles National Vice-President (Rail) 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Gary Way National Vice-President (Road) 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Joanne McCallum National Vice-President 01/01/2013 to 07/04/2013 
(Affirmative Action) 

Lana Howcroft National Vice -President 08/04/2013 to 31/12/2013. 
(Affirmative Action) 

Alex Claassens Branch Secretary- NSW 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Trevor Dobbyn Branch Secretary - Victoria 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Samantha Simonetis Branch Secretary- Tasmania 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 



Owen Doogan Branch Secretary - 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 
Queensland 

Ashley Waddell Branch Secretary - SA&NT 01/01/2013 to 26/09/2013 

Darren Phillips Branch Secretary - SA&NT 27/09/2013 to 31/1212013 

Philip Woodcock Branch Secretary - WA 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Phil Altieri Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 
Tram & Bus 

Greg Cameron Assistant National Seaetary 01/01/2013 to 31/12!2013 
Administrative, Supervisory. 

Doug Klineberg NSW Branch Delegate 01/0112013 to 31/1212013 

Chris Preston NSW Branch Delegate 05/04/2013 to 31/1212013 

Robert Hayden NSW Branch Delegate 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Marc Marotta Victorian Branch Delegate 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Tanielu (Danny) Victorian Branch Delegate 08/0412013to 31/12/2013 
Faalele 
John Curley Assistant National Secretary 01/0112012 to 04/04/2013 

Rail Operations 
Peter Perkins Assistant National Secretary 05/0412013to 31/1212013 

Rail Operations 
Greg Tatnell Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Ross Schimke Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 
Infrastructure 

Geoff Ralph Assistant National Secretary 1/01/2013 to 04/0412013 
Locomotive 

Keith McMahon Assistant National Secretary 05/04/2013 to 31/12/2013 
Locomotive 

Bob Nanva 
NATIONAL SECRETARY 

Dated: 28 May 2014 



INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
TO THE MEMBERS 

AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION NATIONAL OFFICE 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the general purpose financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry 
Union, National Office, which comprises the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013 and the income 
statement, statement of changes in accumulated funds, statement of cash flows for the year ended 
on that date, statement of significant accounting policies and the Committee of Managemenfs 
Statement. 

Committee of Management Responsibility 

The Committee of Management are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of 
the financial report in accordance with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. This 
responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preperetlon and 
fair presentation of the financial report that Is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable In the circumstances. 

Audit Approach 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conduct 
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These auditing standards require that 
we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the finandal report is free from misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the audHor's judgment 
Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial raport in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we followed appUcable independence requirements of Australian 
professional ethical pronouncements. 

Recovery of Wage Activity 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements include comment that the National Council has 
not derived any revenue durtng the year as a result of any recovery of wage activity it may have 
undertaken on behalf of members. Our Audit Opinion has been formed on the basis that no 
recovery of wage activity was undertaken. 

Auditor's Declaration 

l am an approved auditor for the purpose of Fair Work (Regulated Organisations) Act 2009 and I am 
a member of the lnstitl.rte of Chartered Accountants Australia and I hold a Public Practice 
Certificate. 



INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
TO THE MEMBERS 

AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION NATIONAL OFFICE 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram & Bus Industry 
Union, National Office presents fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other 
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia as well as the requirements Imposed by 

the Reporting Guidelines of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of Schedule 18 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act2009. 

We are also of the opinion that managemenfs use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements was appropriate. 

iti 
d ompany Auditor 

viti Pty Ltd 

Dated : 2t May, 2013 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION- NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

COMMITTEEOFMANAGEMENTSTATEMENT 

On 28 May 2014, the Committee ofM.anagement ofthe Australian Rail Tram & Bus Industry 
Union National Office passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial 
report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December2013. 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial 
Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a fair view of the financial performance, fmancial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they become due and payable; and 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 
(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules 

of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 
(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 

rules of the organisation including the rules of the branch concerned; and 
(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 

accordance with the "Fair Work. (RO) Act 2009"; and 
(iv) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, inn 

consistent manner to each of the other reporting units of the organisation; Wld 
(v) no further information has been sought in any request of a member of the reporting 

unit or a Registrar duly made under section 272 of the "Fair Work (RO) Act 20091
,; 

and 
(vi) no order for inspection of :financial records have been made by the Commission 

under section 273 of the "Fair Work (RO) Act 2009". 

(f) The National Office has not derived any revenue during the year as a result of any recovery 
of wages activity it may have undertaken on behalf of members. 

Signed 28 May, 2014 by Bob Nanva in accordance with such resolution as is passed by the 
couunittee of management. 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NA llONAL OFFICE 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the Year Ended 31at December 2013 

2013 2012 
Notes $ $ 

REVENUE 
Capitation 6 1,988,028 1,939,133 
Affiliation Fees 6 113,816 98,529 
Levies 6 58,782 
Interest Received 24,713 40,752 
Member Subscriptions 
Grant Received 38 (25,364) 
Rent Received 27,000 
Other Income 3C 42,323 14,201 
Property Transferred from NSVV Branch 2.6021742 

TOTAL REVENUE 4,855,402 2,007,251 

EXPENSES 
Employee Expenses 4A 561,862 790,622 
Capitation Fees 
Affiliation Fees 48 157,727 151,589 
Administration Expenses 4C so9,n9 585,854 
Grants or Donations 40 22,545 9,477 
Depreciation and Amortisation 41,306 46,762 
Legal Costs 4E 189,539 225,301 
Audit Fees 4F 30,350 36.356 
Other Expenses 4G 1021320 1751431 

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,915,428 2,021 ,192 

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 2,939,974 48,069 

OTHER COMPREHESIVE INCOME 
Gain on Revaluation of Land & Buildings 5811556 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 3,521,530 46,059 
THE YEAR 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 



Balance 01/0112012 
Surplus for the Year 

Balance 31/1212012 

Surplus for the Year 
Transfer to Reserve 

Balance 31/12/2013 

AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
As at 31st December 2013 

Asset 
Retained Revaluation 

Profits Reserve 
$ 

3,239,716 325,983 
46,059 

3,285,775 325,983 

3,521,530 
(581,556) 581,556 

6,225,749 907,539 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 

Total 
$ 

3,565,699 
46,059 

3,611,758 

3,521,530 

7,133,288 



AUSTRAUAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31st December 2013 

2013 2012 
Notes $ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 2,763,458 2,717,024 
Receivables 6 659,764 463,413 
Other 7 18,309 6 277 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,441,531 3,186,714 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Anancial Assets 8 20 20 
Property 9 94,162 751,889 
Investment Property 10 3,900,000 
Plant & Equipment 11 44,135 46,679 
Motor Vehicles 12 19,447 26.095 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,057,764 824,683 

TOTAL ASSETS 7.499,295 4,011,397 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 13 146,049 120,376 
Provisions 14 219,958 279!263 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 366,007 399,639 

TOTAL UABILITIES 366,007 399,639 

NET ASSETS 7,133,288 3,611,758 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 
Reserves 15 907,539 325,983 
Accumulated Surplus 16 6,225,749 3,285,775 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 7,133,288 3,811,758 

The accompanying notes form part ofthese financial statements 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended 31at December 2013 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 
Capitation and Other Income 
Payments to Suppliers and Employees 
Interest Received 
Rent Received 
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating 
Activities 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACITIVITJES 
Proceeds from (Payment for) Property Plant 
and Equipment 
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing 
Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 
Cash at beginning of the Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

NOTES TO THE SATEMENT OF CASH 
FLOW 

Note A - Reconciliation of Caah 

Cash at the end of the financial year as show 
in the Siatement of Cash Flows Is reconciled 
to the ralaled items in the Statement of 
Financial Position as follows: 

Cash at Bank and on Deposit 

Note B - Reconciliation of Caah Flow from 
Operations with Profit from Ordinary 
Actlvltles 
Profit from Ordinary ActiVIties 

Depreciation 
Transfer of Asset from NSW 
Branch/Revaluation 
Change in Assets and Liabilities 

(tncrease)/Decrease in Receivable$ 
(lncreaseYDecrease in Prepak:l Expenses 
lncreasei(Deaease) in Creditors 
lncreasei(Decrease) in Provision for 
employee benefits 

Cash Flows from Operations 

Notes 

B 

A 

This Year 
Inflows 

(Outflows) 

1,989,596 
(1,904, 782) 

24,713 
27.000 

136,527 

(90,091) 

(90,091) 

46,436 
2,717,024 

2,763,460 

2,763,460 

3,521,530 

41,30El 

(3, 184,298) 

(196,351) 
(12,032) 

25,676 

(59.304) 

136,527 

The accompanying nCJtes form part of these financial statements 

Last Year 
Inflows 

(Outflows) 

1,882,473 
(1,792,700) 

40,752 

130,525 

(112,864) 

(112,864) 

17,661 
2,699,363 

2,717,024 

2,717,024 

46,059 

46,762 

(56,660) 
18,369 
8,362 

67,633 

130,525 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December2013 

NOTE 1-STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that has been prepared in accordance 
with Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. 

The financial report is prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does not lake into 
account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current 
assets. 

The following specific accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise 
stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this report: 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment Is carried at cost or at fair value less, where applicable any 
accumulated depreciation. 

Plant and equipment 
Plant and equipment are included at fair value. The carrying amount is reviewed annually by the 
Committee of Management tc ensure it is not in excess of recoverable amount. 

Property for own use & Investment Property 
Freehold land and buildings ere measured on the fair value basis, being the amount for which an asset 
could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. It is the policy 
of the entity to have periodic independent valuation9, with annual appraisals being made by directors .. 

Property held to earn rental income is separately disclosed form property held for own use. Investment 
properties are measured on the fair value basis. As with property held for own use. it Is the policy of the 
entity to have periodic independent valuations, with annual appraisals being made by directors. The 
change In fair value of investment properties are recorded in the income statement No depreciation is 
provided where the fair value basis is used. The last independent valuation was as at 18 March 2014 
carried out by Malcolm Craig, Registered Valuer No 4173. The valuation of land and building was 
determined to be $3,900,000. 

(b) Income Tax 
No provision for income tax ie necessary, as "Trade Unions,. are exempt from income tax under Section 
50 -15 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(c) Employee Entitlements 
Provision for employee entitlements in the form of Long Service Leave and Accrued Annual Leave has 
been made for the estimated accrued entitlement of all employees on the basis of their terms of 
employment. In the case of Long Service Leave, the accrual has been measured by reference to periods 
of service and current salary rates as it is considered that this results In an amount not materially 
diffeAJnt to that achieved by discounting estimated future cash flows. 

Contributions are made by the National Council to employee superannuation funds and are charged as 
expenses when incurred. 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

(d) Defined Superannuation Schemes 

In respect to defined benefrt plans, the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected 
unit cost method. Actuarial calculations are conducted by State Super_ The amount recognised in the 
Statement of Finai'\Clal Position represents the present value of the defined benefits obligations adjusted 
for any unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs less the fair value 
of the plan's assets. The union has deflned benefit obligations for members participating in the State 
Authorities Superannuation Scheme and the State Authorities Non- Contributory Superannuation 
Scheme. All Schemes are closed to new members. 

(e) Comparative 

When required by Accountlng Standards and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009, 
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial 
year. 

NOTE 2-OPERATING SURPLUS 
Operating Profit 

Note 38: Grantz; or Donations 
Grants 
Donations 

Note 3C: Other Income 
Sponsorship 
Other Income 

NOTE 4- EXPENSE 
Note 4A: Employee Expenses 
Holders of Office: 
Wages and Salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and Other Entitlements 
Retirement Benefit Expenses 

Employees Other then Officeholders: 
Wages and Salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and Other Entitlements 

2013 
$ 

2,94~.627 

39,318 
3,005 

42,323 

232,975 
20,246 
27,831 

(106,033) 

175,019 

332,632 
35,414 
18,897 

386,843 

561,862 

2012 
$ 

46,059 

(25,364) 

(25,364) 

13,636 
565 

14,201 

234,592 
18,108 
30,656 
34!99~ 

318,355 

428,367 
41,923 

1,977 

472,267 

790,622 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFF1CE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

2013 
$ 

Note 48: Affiliation Fees 
ACTU 128,393 
APHEDA 
ARA Membership 
International Transport Workers 
Federation 16,799 
Philippines Australia Union Link 
Rail Industry Safety Standards Board 2,521 
The Mckell Institute 5,014 
Tracksafe s.ooo 

1S7,727 

Note 4C: Admlnistration Expenses 
Cons1deralion to Employers for Payroll 
Deductions 
Compulsory Levies 

ACTU 2011 Levy e3,692 
ACTU 2013 IR Levy 54,500 

Fee/Allowances- Meeting and Conferences 
Attendance 11,430 
Council Executive Expenses and Lost 
Time 119,209 

Conference and Meeting Expenses 
Accommodations 38,860 
Airfares & Traveling Expenses 106,942 
Conference and Meetings 113,186 
National Executive 10,945 

Accountancy 15,600 
Bank Charges & F.I.D etc 1,124 
Consultants 112,436 
Property Expenses 

Building Expenses 7,089 
Rates & Land Taxes 10,234 
Rent Paid 40,205 

Office Expense~ 
Postage 2,299 
Printing and Stationery 35,674 
Subscription and Membership 1,eso 
Telephone 44,696 

Social Medla.Website 
Website 20.008 

809,779 

Note 40: Gnnts or Donations 
Grants 
Donations 221545 

22,545 

2012 
$ 

113,553 
909 
492 

16,576 
45 

5,014 
15,000 

151,589 

105,644 

71,928 

71,333 
109,110 

23,226 
9,209 

18,300 
656 

110,356 

5,323 
266 

781 
24,537 

5,831 
49,600 

(25,364) 
4.916 

585,654 

9,477 

9,477 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NAT10NAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

Note 4E: Legal Costs 
Litigation 
Other Legal Matters 

Note 4F: Audit Fees 
Financial Statement Audit Services 
Other Servi<:e$ 

Note 4g: Other Expenses 
Advertising and Promotion 
Campaigns 
Fringe Benefit Tax 
General Expense 
Insurances -General 
Memorabilia 
Motor Vehicle Expenses 
Publications 
Payroll Tax 
Penalties - via RO Act or Ro Regulations 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Research 
Staff Amenities 
Staff Training 
Badges & Other Items 

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 
Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank and on Deposit 

NOTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER 
RECEIVABLES 
Receivables from Other Reporting Units 
Other Receivables 

2013 
$ 

189,539 

189,539 

22,762 
7,588 

30,350 

6.200 
2,083 

16,718 
28,082 

2,065 
11.922 

258 

26,546 

8,446 

102,320 

501 
2,762,957 

2,763,458 

617,064 
42,700 

859,764 

2012 
$ 

225,301 

225,301 

27,162 
9,194 

36,356 

817 

(2,905) 
20,374 
22,638 

12,281 
12,627 

718 

20,461 
72,377 

771 
8,736 
6,536 

175,431 

501 
2,716,523 

2,717,024 

463,413 

463,413 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NA 110NAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

Receivables from other Reporting Units 

VIC NSW 
Opening Balance 
01/0112012 50,606 243,140 
Amounts Charged to 
Branches 

Capitation Fees 573,381 991,981 
Affiliation Fees 25,708 60,022 
ACTU Levies 

2011 Levy 7,160 16,717 
20131R l.evy 6,127 14,304 

Amount Received 
from Branches 

Capitation Fees (572,149) (904,253) 
Affiliation Fees (18,842) 
ACTU Levies 

Closing Balance 71,992 
31/12/2013 

NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT ASSET 
Prepayments 

NOTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS 
Share Encompass 

NOTE 9: PROPERTY 
Redfern Property- at Valuation 

(59,532) 
{16, 717} 

345,662 

Leasehold Improvements - Goulbum Street 
-at Cost 
l.ess: Provision for Depreciation 

NOTE 1 D: INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
Redfern Property- at Valuatlon 

NOTE 11: PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
Plant and Equipment 
Lees: Provision for Depreciation 

NOTE 12: MOTOR VEHICLES 
Motor Vehicles 
Less: Provision for Depreciation 

SNNT QLD 

15,799 137,742 

85,582 428,612 
4,124 28,498 

1,149 7,937 
983 6,792 

(92,360) (424,339) 
(4,042) (21 ,550) 

11,235 163,869 

2013 
$ 

TAS 

1,683 

18,395 
1,594 

444 
378 

(15,325) 
(797) 

6,372 

16,309 

20 

99,386 
(5,226) 

94,162 

3,900,000 

197,339 
(153,204} 

44,135 

52,254 
{32.607} 

19,447 

WA 

14,443 

86,676 
5,236 

1,468 
1,211 

(87,113} 
(3,800) 

18,111 

2012 
$ 

TOTAL 

463.413 

2,184,628 
125,182 

34,865 
29,795 

(2,095,539) 
(108,563) 

(16l17) 

617,064 

6,277 

20 

726,667 

68,268 
(43,046~ 

751,869 

175,798 
(129.119} 

46,679 

52,254 
{26,159} 

26,095 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL. TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

2013 2012 
$ $ 

Movement In Carrying Amounts: 
Investment Plant& Motor 

Property Property Equipment Vehide 
Balance at Beginning of Year 751,889 46,679 26,095 
Additions/Revaluation 68,548 3,900,000 21,541 
Disposals/Reclassification (715,702) 
Depreciation (10,573} {24,085} (616481 

Carrying Amount at End of Year 94,162 3,900,000 44,135 19,447 

NOTE 13: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Consideration to Employers for Payroll 
Decludions 
Payable to Other Reporting Units 

NSWBranch 6,377 7,254 
TAS Branch 7,9Q3 1,093 
VIC Branch 325 
WA Branch 21,155 
SA Branch 2,885 

Trade Creditors 18,962 49,276 
Other Payable 881677 621428 

146,049 120,376 

NOTE 14: PROVISIONS 
OffiCeholders: 

Provision for Annual Leave 77,385 64,869 
Provision for Long Service Leave 26,290 20,723 
Provision for ROO 31,613 21,865 
Provision for Retirement Benefits {24.379} 81.664 

110,909 189,111 

Employees Other than Officeholders: 
Provision for Annual Leave 65,595 56,020 
Provision for Long Service Leave 19,533 14,918 
Provision for ROO 231921 201213 

109,049 90,151 

219,958 279,262 

Movement during the Year: 
Long 

Annual Service Retire 
Leave Leave ROD Benefits 

Benefits Balance at the Beginning of the 
Year 119,890 35,641 42,078 81,664 

lncreasei(Decrease) in Provision 29,090 10,182 13,276 (106,033) 

Balance at the End of Year 142,980 45,823 55,354 (24,379) 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

NOTE 15: RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 

Other than for one employee, employees of the National Council are entitled to benefits from a 
superannuation plan on retirement, disability or death. For these employees, the National Council 
participated ln a defined contribution plan. The benefits provided under thrs plan are based on 
accumulated contributions and earnings for each employee. The National Council's liability is limited to 
paying the contributions to the plan. 

For one employee, the National Council participated in an employer sponsored defined benefits plan 
during the yeer. The benefit provided by the plan is based on the length of service of the member at 
retirement Employees contribute various percentages of their gross income and the union may 
contribute up to 4.5 times the employees final average salary at retirement depending on the length of 
membership and the employees own contributions. 

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation -

2013 
$ 

Present Value at the Beginning of the Year 752,165 
Current Service Cost 7,027 
Interest Cost 24,031 
Contributions by Funds Participants 3,409 
Actuarial Gains (8,286) 
Benefits Paid (12,669) 
Taxes, Premiums & Expenses Paid (8,039) 

Present Value at the End of the Year 757,838 

Fair Value at the Beginning of the Year 667,058 
Interest I nco me 21,105 
Actual Retum 117,646 
Employer Contributions 39,259 
Contributions by Funds Participant 3,409 
Benefits (Paid) Transferred In (12,669) 
Taxes, Premiums & Expenses Paid {81039) 

Fair Value at the End of the Year 827,769 

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position-

Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit 
Obligations 
Fair Value of Fund Assets at End of Year 

Adjustment for Effect of Asset Ceiling 
Net (Asset)/Liability Recognised In the 
Statement of Financial Position 

757,638 

(827,769) 

45,752 

(24,379) 

2012 
$ 

527,577 
3,929 

18,719 
2,207 

176,326 
7,831 

736,569 

490,990 
40,603 
61,104 
52,285 

2,207 
7,746 

654,935 

736,589 

(654,935) 

81,654 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL,TRAM AND BUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NAnONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

The percentage of the Funds assets invested in each asset class at 31 December 

2013 
% 

Australian Equities 33.9 
Overseas Equities 28.3 
Australian Fixed Interest 4.4 
Overseas Fixed Interest 2.2 
Property 8.1 
Cash 8.0 
other 16.2 
All fund assets are invested by STC at arm's length through independent fund managers. 

NOTE 16: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Interest Rate Risk 

2012 
% 

31.0 
24.3 
6.2 
2.4 
6.7 

13.4 
14.0 

The Brach's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective avemge interest rate for each class of 
financial assets and financial liabilities are set out below. 

31 December 2012 
Flxed Floating 

Interest Interest Non 
Rate Rate Interest Total 

$ $ $ $ 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,716,523 501 2,717,024 
Receivable 4631413 463.413 

2,716,523 463,914 3,180,437 

Weighted Average Interest Rate 1. 73% 

31 December2013 
Fixed Floating 

Interest Interest Non 
Rate Rate Interest Total 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 93,454 2,669,383 621 2,763,458 
Receivable 659.764 6591764 

93,454 2,669,383 660,385 3.423,222 

Weighted Average Interest Rate 0.77% 

Credit Risk Exposure 
Credit risk Is the risk that counter parties tc a financial asset will fail to discharge their obligations, 
causing the Branch to incur a financial loss. 
The credit rlak exposure of the Branch to financial assets which have been recognized in the Statement 
of Financial Position is generally the caTT}'ing amounts. 
The carrying amounts of cash and Investments approximate net fair values. 



AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM AND SUS INDUSTRY UNION 

NATIONAL OFFICE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended 31st December 2013 

NOTE 17: PROVIDING INFORMATION 

In accordance with the requirementa of the Wori<place Relations Act 1996, the attention of member is 
drawn to the provisions of Section 272 of Schedule 1 B which reads as follows: 

(1) A member of an organization, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed infonnation in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person 
making the application 

(2) The application must be in writlng and must specify the period within, and the manner in which, 
the Information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the 
application is given to the reporting unit 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under (1) above. 

NOTE 18: RECOVERY WAGES 

The Council has not derived any revenue duling the year as a result of any recovery of wages activity It 
may have undertaken on behalf of membeiS. 
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regime's practice ·Egypt-
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W.OR"KER'S ONUNE 
£\V~EWSFEEDS 
C~Vale Mark Ryan -11 
December 2011 
r:;oPI job ruts to cost 
Orange m illlons - 30 August 
2011 
' ~'Job ruts to cripple health 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

Operating Report 

This Operating Report covers: 

• the activities ofthe Australian Rail, Tram & Bus Industry Union, National Office, for 
the financial year ended 31•t December 2013, 

• the results of those activities and 
• any significant changes in the nature of those activities as required under s.254 Fair 

Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

The principal activities of the National Office of the Union, as conducted through the 
National Office, during the paet year fell into the following categories: 

ACTIVITIES 
Making agreements with employers 
Implementation of the decisions of the National Executive and National 
Council 
Implementation of the union's organising agenda, including direct assistance 
and strategic advice on particular industry or site organising projects, the 
training and development of officials and assistance to branches on planning 
and resourcing campaigns. 
Industrial support including representation of individual member grievances, 
advice on legal and legislative matters, holding of union elections as 
provided for in the rules of the union, and responding to the needs of 
branches and members as provided for within the rules of the union, within 
the scope of any statutory or legal obligations. 
The administration of federal awards, the certification of federal industrial 
agreements, the variation of awards following major test cases, and making 
application to vary federal awards on behalf of branches. 
National media and communications to members, branches and the broader 
community via media releases in support of campaigns, web based 
technology, including the national magazine The Voice. 
Coordination of and Negotiation of key national industries, and assistance to 
branches on bargaining by request. 

The National Office has consulted with the ACTU on the development of 
claims to be pursued in the AIRC and union policy in general. Where 
appropriate, the National Office has assisted branches in the implementation 
of relevant decisions via the variation of awards. 

The National Office has been involved in campaigns and negotiations with 
government, political parties and industry organisations, including with 
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financial donations and/or other support, around issues of importance for 
members, EBA n otiations, trainin skill shorta es, fati ue laws. 

• The 2012 elections had carried over into 2013, and were declared by the Australian 
Electoral Commission on the 5th April 2013 for contested positions and the 8th April 
2013 for the uncontested positions. This meant that in some positions there were 
two office holders for the respective terms of office for 2013. 

•Due to the resignation of the SA/NT Branch Secretary on the 26th September 2013, a 
new Branch Secretary was appointed, in accordance with the registered rules, on 
the same date and therefore was also a member of the National Executive by the 
nature of the Office Of Branch Secretary. 

• The following Rule Changes were ratified during 2013: 

o Alterations to the Federally Registered Uniform Rules of the Rail Tram and 
Bus Industry Union were, Rules 47,100 and 101. 

o New rules that were added to the Federally Registered Uniform Rules of the 
Rail Tram and Bus Industry Union were, Rules 106 and 179A 

The financial affairs of the National Office have altered significantly due to the 
following: 

• The engagement of consultants to implement a series of governing body 
recommendations concerning research, policy, development and publicity. 

• Legal expenses in relation to advocacy, EBA and union structures advice. 
• An increase in Meeting and Conference expense due to there being a National 

Council during 2013. 
• Increase in real property assets held by the ARTBIU to reflect changes in legal 

status of 83-89 Renwick St, Redfern. 

'1;·.1,·,:.· 
.. ,.''i J 

All Members of the Union have the right to resign from the Union in accordance with Rule 
14 of the Union Rules (and Section 17 4 of Fair Work (RO) Act 2009); namely by providing 
notice addressed and delivered to the Sec~etary of the relevant Branch, including via 
email. 

14- RESIGNATION FROM MEMBERSHIP 

(1) A member of an organisation may resign from membership by written notice 
addressed and delivered to a person designated for the purpose in the rules of the 
organisation or a branch of the organisation. 

Note: The notice of resignation can be given electronically if the organisation's rules allow for this (see 
section 9 of the Electronio Tmnsactions Act 1999). 
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{2) A notice of resignation from membership of an organisation takes effect: 

(a} where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the 
organisation: 
(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the organisation; or 
(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than the 

day when the member ceases to be eligible to become a member; 
whichever is later; or 

(b) in any other case: 
(i) at the end of 2 weeks, or such shorter period as is specified in the 

rules. of the organisation, after the notice is received by the 
organisation; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 
whichever is later. 

(3) Any dues payable but not paid by a former member of an organisation, in relation to 
a period before the member's resignation from the organisation took effect, may be 
sued for and recovered in the name of the organisation, in a court of competent 
jurisdiction, as a debt due to the organisation. 

(4) A notice delivered to the person mentioned in subsection (1) is taken to have been 
received by the organisation when it was delivered. 

(5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the organisation is not invalid 
because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with subsection (1). 

(6) A resignation from membership of an organisation is valid even if it is not effected in 
accordance with this section if the member is informed in writing by or on behalf of 
the organisation that the resignation has been accepted. 

Note: Regulations may require employers who offer payroll deduction faclltles to inform employees that 
cessation of payroll deduction by an er11)1oyee does not constitute resignation (see section 359). 

Board· P.oaltiC».ns held-:by.,omce·rs, e·mpJoye~s of -the··.Nationai·Gffice~-tcfll.e : ·-·· ~::;~~:!:: 
itls~,_~fl);re~ - .· - .... ~.-· · :· · · ·'·' '> ·_ , ·· .. ~-: ·~: · · · ·_, · ~ · .: ... : .. : ... · :. ·.- :· . · .:-__ .. · >·:~. :. .· _. · '~:;:'},::~ 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, only the following Officers held any of the 
following positions by virtue of their office of the Rail, Tram and Bus Union National 
Council are: 

• a trustee of a superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme; 
or 

• a director of a company that is the trustee of a superannuation entity or an exempt 
public sector superannuation scheme; and 

• where a criterion for the officer being the trustee or director is that the officer is an 
officer of a registered organisation. 

The member(s) listed below hold the following position(s) as trustees or company 
directors: 



OF.FICIA~ 
Bob Nanva 

Allan Barden 
Alex Classens 
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ORGANISATION 
• Transport & Logistics Industry Skills Council - Director 
• Tracksafe Foundation - Director 
• Department of Infrastructure & Transport, High Speed 

Rail Advisory Group ~ Member 

• Tracksafe Foundation- Director 
• By virtue of his office within RTBU NSW Branch, 

Employee representative, appointed to the Board of the 
State Trustee Corporation. 

• Membership elected Director, Encompass Credit 
Union. 

. 
L'. 

There were 34,082 members of the union as at 31st December 2013. 

As at 31 December 2013 the National Office employed 6 full time employees, 1 part time 
employee, with a total number of 6% employees on a full time equivalent basis. 

The following persons were members of the National Executive, during the year ending 
31st December 20 13; 

Bob Nanva National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Allan Barden Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Owen Doogan National President 01/0112013 to 31/1212013 

James styles National Vice-President (Rail) 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Gary Way National Vice-President (Road) 01/0112013 to 31/12/2013 

Joanne McCallum National Vice-President 01/01/2013 to 07/04/2013 
(Affirmative Action) 

Lana Howcroft National Vice -President 08/04/2013 to 31/1212013. 
(Affirmative Action) 

Alex Claassens Branch Secretary - NSW 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Trevor Dobbyn Branch Secretary - Victoria 01/0112013 to 31/12/2013 

Samantha Simonetis Branch Secretary- Tasmania 01/0112013 to 31/12/2013 
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Owen Doogan Branch Secretary - Queensland 01/0112013 to 31/1212013 

Ashley Waddell Branch Secretary - SA&NT 01/01/2013 to 26/09/2013 

Darren Phillips Branch Secretary - SA&NT 27/09/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Phillip Woodcock Branch Secretary- WA 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Phil Altieri Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 
Tram & Bus 

Greg Cameron Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 
Administrative, Supervisorv. 

Doug Klineberg NSW Branch Delegate 01/01/2013 to 31112/2013 

Chris Preston NSW Branch Delegate 05/04/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Robert Hayden NSW Branch Delegate 01/01/2013 to 31/12/2013 

Mare Marotta Victorian Branch Delegate 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Tanielu (Danny) Victorian Branch Delegate 08/0412013 to 31/12/2013 
Faalele 
John Curley Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2012 to 04/04/2013 

Rail Operations 
Peter Perkins Assistant National Secretary 05/04/2013 to 31/12/2013. 

Rail Operations 
Greg Tatnell Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 31/1212013 

Fleet Maintenance 
Ross Schimke Assistant National Secretary 01/0112013 to 31/1212013 

Infrastructure 
Geoff Ralph Assistant National Secretary 01/01/2013 to 04/04/2013 

Locomotive 
Keith McMahon Assistant National Secretary 05/04/2013 to 31/1212013 

Locomotive 

' 

• ~ c:.-- c-- I 

. 

Bob Nanva 

NATIONAL SECRETARY 

Dated: 28 May 2014 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

CO~TTEEOF~AGEMENTSTATEMENT 

On 28 May 2014, the Committee of Management ofthe Australian Rail Tram & Bus Industry 
Union National Office passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial 
report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 2013. 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the Industrial 
Registrar; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a fair view of the fmancial performance, firum.cial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial yefll' to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting w1it will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they become due and payable; and 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 
(i) meetings of the conunittee ofmanagement were held in accordance with the rules of 

the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 
(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the 

rules of the organisation including the rules of the branch concerned; and 
(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in 

accordance with the "Fair Work (RO) Act 2009•'; and 
(iv) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a 

consistent manner to each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 
( v) no further infonnation has been sought in any request of a member of the reporting 

unit or a Registrar duly made under section 272 of the "Fair Work (RO) Act 2009"; 
and 

(vi) no order for inspection of financial records have been made by the Commission 
under section 273 of the "Fair Work (RO) Act 2009". 

(f) The National Office has not derived any revenue during the year as a result of any recovery of 
wages activity it may have Wldertaken on behalf of members. 

Signed 28 May, 2014 by Bob Nanva in accordance with such resolution as is passed by the 
committee of management. 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION- NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

OTHER INFORMATION 

The Committee of Management of the Australian Rail. Tram & Bus Industry Union National Office 
has resolved to provide a concise financial report to members for the financial year ended 31 
December 2013. 

The concise fmancial report has been derived from the full report and cannot be expected to provide 
as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financial and investing 
activities of the branch as the full report. A copy of the full report and auditor's report will be sent 
to any member who requests them free of charge. 

Members are advised of the following provisions: 

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
Sec 272 Infonnation to be provided to members or Registrar 
(1) A member of a reporting unit, or a Registrar, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 

prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person 
making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in 
which, the infonnation is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after 
the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 
(4) 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL FACTORS 

This discussion and analysis is provided to members in understanding the concise financial report. 
Statements of Comprehensive Income 
The profit for the year as reported was $3,521,530, which includes a gain of$3,184,298 from the recognition 
of the Redfern Property which was transferred from New South Wales Brauch during the year. and a gain of 
$581,556 from the revaluation of real properties. The result from the other activities for the year was a 
surplus of $337,232 which is due to 

• A surplus in the amount required to fund defined benefits superannuation exposure, 
• A reduction in overall wages, and 
• An increase sponsorship income 

Statement of Finaneial Position 
Total assets increased by $3,487,898, however after adjustment for the recognition of the Redfern property 
and the revaluation of property referred to above, other assets increased by $303,600 being mainly an 
increase in receivables from the branches. 
Liabilities reduced by $33,632 due mainly to amount required to fund defined benefits superannuation 
exposure which decreased by $1 06,033 which was a reflection of an improvement in the financial markets 
impact on the defined benefit funds. 

Statement or Cash Flows 
Cash flow modestly increased by $136,527 and is a reflection while the income from nonna.1 activities 
increased by $337,232 above, a significant amount was not received at31 December, 2013. 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

2013 2012 
$ $ 

REVENUE 
Capitation 1,986,026 1,939,133 
Affiliation Fee Received 113,816 98,529 
Levies 58,782 
Interest Received 24,713 40,752 
M$mber Subscriptions 
Grant Received {25,364} 
Rent Received 27,000 
Other Income 42,323 14,201 
Property Transferred from NSW Branch 2,602.742 

TOTAL REVENUE 4,855,402 2,067,251 

EXPENSES 
Employee Expenses 561,862 790,622 
Cepltatlon Fees 
Affiliation Fees 157,727 151,589 
Administration Expenses 809,779 585,654 
Grants or DonatiOn$ 22,545 9,477 
Depreciation and Amortisation 41 ,306 46,762 
Legal Costs 189,539 225,301 
Audit Fees 30,350 36.356 
Other Expenses 102.320 175,431 

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,915,428 2,021,192 

PROFITJ(LOSS) FOR 1liE YEAR 2,939,974 46,059 

OTHER COMPREHESIVE INCOME 
Geln on Revaluation of Land & Buildings 581.556 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 3,521,530 46,059 THE YEAR 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

Balance 01(0112012 
Surplus for the Year 

Balance 31(12/2012 

Surplus for the Year 
Transfer to Reserve 

Balance 31/1212013 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Asset 
Retained Revaluation 
Profits Reserve 

$ 

3,239,716 325,983 
46,059 

3,285,775 325,983 

3,521,530 
(581,556) 5811556 

6,225,749 907,539 

Total 
$ 

3,565,699 
48,059 

3,611,758 

3,521,530 

7,133,288 
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AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSmON 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables 
Other 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Financial Assets 
Property 
Investment Property 
Plant & Equipment 
Motor Vehicles 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABIUTIES 
Accounts Payable 
Provisions 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 
Reserves 
Accumulated Surplus 

ACCUMULATED FUNDS 

2013 
$ 

2,763,458 
659,764 

18,309 

3,441,531 

20 
94,162 

3,900,000 
44,135 
19447 

4,057,764 

7,499,295 

146,049 
219,958 

366,007 

366,007 

7,133,288 

907,539 
6,225,749 

7,133,288 

2012 
$ 

2,717,024 
463,413 

6,277 

3,186,714 

20 
751,889 

46,679 
261095 

824,683 

4,011,397 

120,376 
279,263 

399,639 

399,639 

3,611.758 

325,983 
3,285,776 

3,611,758 



12 

AUSTRALIAN RAIL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Capitation and other Income 
Payments to Suppliers and Employees 
Interest Received 
Rent Received 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACITIVITIES 
Proceeds from (Payment for) Property Plant 
and Equipment 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 
Cash at beginning of t~.e Year 

Cash at the End of Year 

This Year 
Inflows 

(Outflows) 

1,989,596 
{1,904,782) 

24,713 
27,000 

136,527 

(90,091) 

(90,091} 

46,436 
2,717,024 

2,763,460 

Last Year 
InflOW$ 

(Outflows) 

1,882,473 
(1,792,700) 

40,752 

130,525 

(112,864) 

(112,864) 

17,661 
2,699,363 

2,717,024 
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AUSTRALIAN RAJL, TRAM & BUS INDUSTRY UNION - NATIONAL OFFICE 
CONCISE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S STATEMENT 

TO THE MEMBERS 

To the members of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union- National Office 

Scope 

We have audited the concise financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union- National 
Office for the financial year ended 31 December, 2013 comprising the Committee of Management 
Starement, Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements. 
The Committee of Management is responsible for the financial report. We have conducted an independent 
audit of this financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members. 

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable 
assurance whether the concise financial report is free of material misstatement. 

Our procedures in respect of the audit of the concise financial report included testing that the 
infonnation in the concise financial report is consistent with the full financial report, and 
examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures which were 
directly derived from the full financial report. These procedures have been undertaken to form an 
opinion whether, in all material respects, the concise financial report is presented fairly in 
accordance with Accounting Standards, the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

I am an approved auditor for the purpose of the Fair Work (Registered Orgatlisations) Act 2009. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion. the Concise Financial Report of Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union- National 
Office for the year ended 31 '1 December, 2013 is in accordance with the full audited general purpose 
financial report available for inspection my members. The Audit opinion, express in that report is as follows: 
In our opinion, the general purpose financial report of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union­
National Office presents fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements in Australia as ~u as the requirements imJXlsed by the Reporting 
Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of Schedule IB of the Fair Work (Registe~ Organisations) Act 2009. 

Ken Mnngraviti 
Ken Mangraviti Pty Ltd 
Chartered Accountants 
Registered Company Auditor 

Dated: 28 May, 2014 



11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne   VIC   3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne   VIC   3001 

 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au  

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

 

28 February 2014 

Mr Bob Nanva 

National Secretary 

Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union 

 

Sent by email:  bnanva@rtbu.org.au  

 

Dear Mr Nanva, 
 
Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - [FR2013/446] 

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act)  
 
The financial year of the Australian Rail, Tram and Bus Industry Union (the reporting unit) ended on 31 
December 2013. 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to prepare and lodge the financial report for the 
reporting unit by the due date, namely 15 July 2014 (being the expiry date of 6 months and 14 days 
from the end of the financial year), under s.268 of the RO Act. 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which financial documents and statements must 
be prepared, audited, provided to members and presented to a meeting. For your assistance, the 
attached Timeline/Planner summarises these requirements. 

Fact sheets and guidance notes in relation to financial reporting under the RO Act are provided on the 
Fair Work Commission website. Additionally, the General Manager’s updated Reporting Guidelines, 
that apply to all financial reports prepared on or after 30 June 2013, are also available on the website 
as is our webinar on the financial Reporting Guidelines.   

The Fair Work Commission has also developed a model set of financial statements for the 2012-2013 
financial year.  There is no requirement to use this model but it may be a useful resource to ensure 
compliance with the RO Act, the Reporting Guidelines and the Australian Accounting Standards.  All of 
the above information can be accessed through our website under Compliance & litigation.  

The financial report and any statement of loans, grants or donations made during the financial year 
[statement must be lodged within 90 days of end of financial year] can be emailed to orgs@fwc.gov.au .  
A sample statement of loans, grants or donations is available at sample documents no.5   

It should be noted that s.268 is a civil penalty provision.  Failure to lodge a financial report may 
result in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $51,000 for a 
body corporate and $10,200 for an individual per contravention) being imposed upon an officer whose 
conduct led to the contravention and/or your organisation.   

Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or via 
email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au.    

Yours sincerely, 

 
Robert Pfeiffer 
Senior Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

mailto:bnanva@rtbu.org.au
http://www.fwc.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfrguidelines
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
http://www.fwc.gov.au/index.cfm?pagename=regorgsfactsheets#factsheets
mailto:robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au


 

 

TIMELINE/ PLANNER 

 

Financial reporting period ending: /       /   

    

Prepare financial statements and Operating Report. 
   

 

   

(a) A Committee of Management Meeting must 
consider the financial statements, and if satisfied, 
pass a resolution declaring the various matters 
required to be included in the Committee of 
Management Statement. 

(b) A 
#
designated officer must sign the Statement 

which must then be forwarded to the auditor for 
consideration as part of the General Purpose 
Financial Report (GPFR). 

/       / 

  

As soon as practicable after end of financial 
year 

 

 

 

  

Auditor's Report prepared and signed and given to 
the Reporting Unit - s257 

/       / 

 Within a reasonable time of having received 
the GPFR 

(NB: Auditor’s report must be dated on or 
after date of Committee of Management 
Statement 

 

    

Provide full report free of charge to members – s265 

 The full report includes: 

 the General Purpose Financial Report (which 
includes the Committee of Management 
Statement); 

 the Auditor’s Report; and 

 the Operating Report. 

/      / 

 (a) if the report is to be presented to a General 

Meeting (which must be held within 6 months 

after the end of the financial year), the report 

must be provided to members 21 days before 

the General Meeting, 

                         or 

(b) in any other case including where the  report 

is presented to a Committee of Management 

meeting*, the report must be provided to 

members within 5 months of end of financial 

year. 

 

  

Present full report to:    

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
(a) General Meeting of Members - s266 (1),(2); OR /       /  

(b) where the rules of organisation or branch allow* - 
a Committee of Management meeting - s266 (3) /       / 

 

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
 

  

Lodge full report with the Fair Work Commission, 
together with the #Designated Officer’s certificate++ 
– s268 

/       / 

 

Within 14 days of meeting 

 

 

*  the full report may only be presented to a committee of management meeting if the rules of the reporting unit provide that a 

percentage of members (not exceeding 5%) are able to call a general meeting to consider the full report. 

#  The Committee of Management Statement  and the Designated Officer’s certificate must be signed by the Secretary or another 

officer who is an elected official and who is authorised under the rules (or by resolution of the organisation) to sign the 

statement or certificate – s243. 

++ The Designated Officer’s certificate must state that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and 

presented to a meeting in accordance with s266 – dates of such events must be included in the certificate. The certificate cannot 

be signed by a non-elected official. 

 
 


